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Gregory G. Petersen, Esq. (Bar No. 77744) 
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Christopher D. Nissen, Esq. (Bar No. 202034) 
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Attorneys for Plaintiffs MARCUS ABBE, et al.  
and BRETT BURKETT, et al. 
 
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

MARCUS R. ABBE, THOMAS E. ABBOTT 
JR., DAVID G. ABRAMS, SABIN M. 
ABRAMS, KRISTEN B. ADAMS, LORI M. 
ADAMS, ROBERT W. ADAMS, SIMON 
ADAMS, ROBERT ADAUTO JR., R. 
ELIZABETH ADDINGTON, ARMANDO R. 
AGUILAR, EDWARD R. AGUIRRE, 
MICHAEL A. AIKEN, LESLIE A. 
ALBRECHT, DANIEL T. ALBRIGHT, 
DONALD A. ALBRIGHT, RICHARD ALLEN, 
KATHERINE E. ALLISON, CATHY N. 
ALLISTER, KAREN A. ALMOS, JESSE R. 
ALMOS JR, ALAN R. ALVAREZ, ARNOLFO 
B. AMBITO, CARLOS A. AMEZCUA, 
ANNETTE M. ANDERSON, TRAVIS W. 
ANDERSON, MARK S. ANNIS, ROBERT W. 
ANSCHICK, RICARDO APODACA, OSCAR 
A. ARMENTA, SCOTT J. ARMSTRONG, 
JAMES W. ARTHUR, CHRISTOPHER T. 
ASBELL, FRANK ASHCRAFT, ANTHONY A. 
ATKINS, ROBERT W. ATWOOD, EDWARD 
D. AUSTIN, JOHN W. AUSTIN, JOHN 
AUTOLINO, GARY AVALOS III, MICHAEL 
J. BAIER, TERESA BAILEY, ROBERT M. 
BAIRD JR., TODD R. BAKER, JAMES D. 
BAKER JR., VINCENT J. BALES, JOSEPH P.  
BANE, SEAN A. BANNAN, KEVIN S. 
BARNARD, SCOTT T. BARNES, BRIDGET P. 
BARNETT, SUZIE K. BARNEY, CHARLES R. 
BARRETT, SCOTT D. BARTOLOMEI, TINA 
C. BASSETT, TOD E. BASSETT, DAVID R. 

CASE NOS. 05-CV-1629 DMS (RBB) 
                           06-CV-0538 
 

CONSOLIDATED FIFTH AMENDED 
COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND 
OTHER RELIEF BASED ON: 
 
1. FLSA §7(a) VIOLATIONS [29 

U.S.C. §207(a)] 
 
2. BREACH OF CONTRACT  

 
3. FLSA §7(a) VIOLATIONS FOR 

LATE PAYMENT OF OVERTIME 
[29 U.S.C. §207(a)] 

 
4. FLSA §7(o) VIOLATIONS [29           

U.S.C. §207(o)] 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
 
 
Complaint Filed: August 16, 2005 
Trial Date:           September 22, 2008  
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BAUTISTA, MICHAEL A. BEAMESDERFER, 
JANA M. BEARD, CAROLE J. BEASON, 
DAVID W. BEATHARD, EDWARD L. 
BECKER, WILLIAM F. BECKER, PAUL J. 
BECOTTE, STEVEN M. BEHRENDT, 
CYNTHIA M. BEILSTEIN, JOHN P. 
BEILSTEIN, KEVIN P. BELLAND, BRIGITTA 
J. BELZ, MICHAEL W. BELZ, MICHAEL R. 
BENDIXEN, TERYL L. BERNARD, GERALD 
F. BERNER JR., DAVID A. BERTRAND, 
REBECCA E. BIGBIE, ROBERT R. BIGBIE, 
GREGORY R. BISESTO, DENNIS BISHOP, 
BETTY BIXBY, LYNN M BIXEL, JEFFREY 
D. BLACKFORD, GIFFORD D. BLAKESLEY, 
MARK T. BLAKESLEY, THOMAS M. 
BOERUM, EUGENE H. BOJORQUEZ, 
DANIEL W. BOLDT, DONALD J. BORINSKI, 
THADDEUS W. BORKOWSKI, NICOLAS 
BORRELLI, THOMAS R. BOSTEDT, 
MATTHEW E. BOTKIN, ARTHUR O. 
BOWEN, GARY L. BOWEN, JR., CLAYTON 
BOWERS, JAMES W. BOYD, PHILLIP K. 
BOZARTH, FRANK P. BRADLEY, JAMES M. 
BRADLEY, JULIE M. BRADLEY, TRACY D. 
BRAUN, DANIEL G. BRENT, LISA L. 
BRESSLER, ROBERT R. BRESSLER, 
DANIEL M. BRINKERHOFF, RUSSELL D. 
BRISTOL, FRANK J. BRITO, KEVIN M 
BROOKS, RONALD BROUSSARD, NEAL N. 
BROWDER  JR., DOUGLAS M. BROWN, JON 
M. BROWN, RONALD O. BROWN, SCOTT 
H. BROWN, TROY A. BROWN, GREGORY 
W. BROWN  JR., JOY M. BRUGMAN, 
CHRISTOPHER M. BRUSH, TERRANCE L. 
BRYAN, MARK J. BUA, DEBORAH W. 
BURGER, RANDY P. BURGESS, CHRISTINA 
D. BURHANS, JOSHUA P. BURKHARDT, 
TIMOTHY A. BURNS, DANIEL A. BUROW, 
JOHN D. BUTTLE, RICHARD A. BUTTS, 
BRUCE T. BYRD, JEANNE M. BYRD, 
PHILLIP D. CADY, LAWRENCE B. CAHILL, 
WILLIAM D. CAHILL, JENE L'MONT 
CALLOWAY, ARTHUR L. CALVERT, 
CHRISTEN M. CAMERON, ARTURO C. 
CAMPA, WILLIAM H. CAMPBELL, 
CLAUDIA CANTO, RUTH S. CARDONA, 
THEODORE M. CARIGNAN, KARRIE L. 
CARLSON, MARK A. CARLSON, THOMAS 
J. CARLYON IV, DANIEL P. CAROPRESO, 
FRANK L. CAROPRESO, JR, JAVIER 
CARRANZA, ROBERT T. CARROLL, SCOTT 
CARTER, TONY B. CARTER, WILLIAM J. 
CARTER, RODERICK A. CASEY, ROBERTO 
A. CASILLAS, JOSEPH B. CASTILLO, 
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CLINTON E. CASTLE, CESAR CASTRO, 
RICKY F. CASTRO, RUDY P. CASTRO, JR., 
ARTHUR H. CAVADA, MISTY R. CEDRUN, 
DANIEL E. CERAR, GEORGE CESENA, 
CARLOS CHACON, JOHN CHANEY, MARK 
A. CHAVEZ, BLAKE A. CHEARY, 
JONATHAN C. CHENG, JON P. CHERSKI, 
JAMES H. CHILES, JEFFREY W. CHIONE, 
RAPHAEL R. CIMMARRUSTI, DOLORES M. 
CIRINO, BRENT E. CISNEROS, DALE L. 
CLARK, JOHN C. CLARK, JOSEPH A. 
CLARK, LAMONT H. CLARK, ROBERT D. 
CLARK, RAYMOND P. CLARK  SR., 
DEBORAH A. CLEM, JAMES H. CLEM, 
MICHAEL A. CLIPPINGER, REX COLE, JR., 
CHRISTOPHER P. COLLIER, KIMBERLY A. 
COLLIER, JAMES T. COLLINS, BERNIE T. 
COLON, LUIS M. COLON, VICTOR S. 
COLVIN, DONALD R. CONE, ROBERT D. 
CONNAUGHY, DAVID CONTRERAS, SEAN 
R. CONWAY, LLOYD E. COOK, ROBERT H. 
COOK, PATRICK J. COOLEY, PHIL B. 
COOPER, NOE F. CORDERO, BRIAN K. 
CORNELL, JEANNETTE L. CORNELL, 
GARY F. CORNER, ROBERT M. CORNETT, 
HENRY D. CORRALES, DEBORAH A. 
COTELLESSA, CAROL V. COUNCIL, CHAD 
E. CRENSHAW, MARCO A. CRISOSTOMO, 
TYRONE H. CROSBY, ROBERT P. CRUZ, 
VEDASTO A. CRUZ  JR., WILLIAM L. 
CUDDY  III, CELSO G. CUEVA, JAMES P. 
CULLIGAN, RALPH A. CUMMINGS, DAVID 
W. CUPPLES, CHRISTOPHER P. CURRAN, 
LAURIE J. CURRAN, FENELLA R. CUSTER, 
MARIUSZ CZAS, DENISE F. DAILEY, 
LEROY K. DAILEY, JOSEPHINE I. DAINS, 
SCOTT W. DANIELS, ROBERT W. DARE, 
ERIC C. DAVIS, GARRY R. DAVIS, JOHN W. 
DAVIS, MICHAEL J. DAVIS, RICHARD E. 
DAVIS, WILLIAM T. DAVIS  JR., DEAN L. 
DAVISON, JEROME DAWSON, MICHAEL O. 
DAY, WILLIAM J. DAY, JR., ALEXANDER 
DE ARMAS, CHARLES DE LA CRUZ, 
SUSAN M. DE LA PENA, DEANA E. DE LOS 
REYES, ROMEO C. DE LOS REYES, 
MICHAEL J. DEAN, CONRADO V. 
DECASTRO, GEOFFREY S. DECESARI, 
JONATHAN M. DEGUZMAN, RAUL 
DELGADILLO, ROBERTO L. DELGADILLO, 
CONSTANDINOS A. DELIMITROS, 
JOVANNA R. DERROUGH, EDWARD A. 
DEVOWE, JAMES F. DICKINSON, JOHN 
(JACK) R. DIDELOT, JENNIFER E. DISHON, 
ROY J. DOAKES, MATTHEW W. DOBBS, 
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WAYNE R. DOEDEN, DONALD J. 
DOLEZAL, JR., JAMES E. DOLLINS, 
MARIANNE L. DOUGHERTY, RONALD H. 
DOUGHERTY, DAVID F. DOUGLAS, 
SAMUEL D. DOUGLAS, GREGORY T. 
DRILLING, ARTHUR W. DUBOIS III, BRETT 
A. DUDLEY, KEVIN C. DUFFY, JOHN G. 
DUNBAR, JEFFREY DUNN, ANTHONY L. 
DUPREE, JOSEPH M. DURAND, WENDE M. 
ECKARD, RICHARD K. EDGIL, FREDERICK 
G. EDWARDS, MICHAEL J. EDWARDS, 
SHERYL L. EDWARDS, RANDAL W. 
EICHMANN, ROLAND H. ELKINS, JOHN 
ELLIOTT, SHARI L. ELLITHORPE, 
WILLIAM ELLITHORPE  JR., DARRYL L. 
EMERSON, ERNESTO ENCINAS, LELAND 
ENGLISH, RICHARD D. ENSIGN, JULIE M. 
EPPERSON, STEVEN S. EPPERSON, 
EDWARD G. ERBE, MANUEL ESCALANTE, 
CHRISTOPHER C. ESCUDERO, 
CHRISTOPHER D. EVERETT, CHRISTINE 
M. FARMER, DEBRA L. FARRAR, JAY P. 
FARRINGTON, TIMOTHY K. FAUBEL, 
PAUL J. FAY, DAVID L. FELKINS, ANDREW 
L. FELLOWS, JEFFREY M. FELLOWS  SR., 
MICHAEL J. FENDER, ALEJANDRO M. 
FERNANDEZ, JAMES D. FILLEY, ROBERT 
G. FILLEY, RODNEY W. FISCHER, 
LAWANDA M. FISHER, LARRY E. FIXSEN, 
MICHAEL F. FLANAGAN, GREGORY A. 
FLOOD, MIGUEL M. FLORES, RAUL 
FLORES, STEVE T. FLORES, GILBERT H. 
FLORES, JR., ANNA M. FORD, JAMES M. 
FORD, MARK E. FOREMAN, COLIN R. 
FORSEY, KENNETH N. FORTIER, NATALIE 
F. FORTIER, RICHARD C. FORTUNA, 
ROBERT M. FOWLER, CHARLES R. FOX, 
PHILLIP J. FRANCHINA, REGINALD F. 
FRANK, HUGG FRENCH, KEVIN B. 
FRENCH, WILLIAM L. FREW, BRIAN J. 
FREYMUELLER, KEVIN B. FRIEDMAN, 
AARON K. FRODENTE, MARCO A. 
FUENTES, ANDREA S. FURST, MARK S. 
GAIN, GERRY D. GAPUSAN, DAVID D. 
GARCIA, IVAN GARCIA, LINDA E. 
GARCIA, MANUEL M. GARCIA, RONALD 
R. GARCIA, RALPH J. GARCIA  JR., JUSTIN 
C. GARLOW, EDWIN R. GARRETTE, 
LARRY D. GATHRIGHT, JAMES R. GEE, 
PAUL  B. GEIS, JOHN P. GENER, FRANK A. 
GERBAC, FREDERICK R. GERKE, TROY A. 
GIBSON, ROBERT I. GILBERT, DAVID N. 
GILLIGAN, CASEY D. GINI, SHANNA W. 
GLAZEWSKI, DEWAYNE F. GLAZEWSKI II, 



 
 

 
05-CV-1629 DMS (RBB) / 06-CV-0538 

- 5 - 
CONSOLIDATED FIFTH AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND OTHER RELIEF 

 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

LORETTA L. GLICK, BRIAN M. 
GOLDBERG, JAMES G. GOLEMBIEWSKI, 
EDWARD R. GOMEZ, JUAN J. GOMEZ, 
GARY S. GONZALES, JORDI GONZALEZ, 
MICHAEL V. GORDON, CHARLES M. 
GRAHAM, RICHARD R. GRANO, JAMES E. 
GRAVES, CEDRIC J. GREEN, CHRISTINE A. 
GREGG, MARY K. GRESSEL, WILLIAM T. 
GRIFFIN, ERIC GROEGER, MIKE 
GUTIERREZ, MARK G. HAAS, GREGORY A. 
HAISAN, DAVID C. HALL, LAWRENCE A. 
HALL, PATRICK S. HALL, RONALD G. 
HALL, MICHELLE HANSEN-GARCIA, 
JERRY P. HARA, JOHN J. HARBERTH, 
CORINNE HARD, JOSEPH P. HARPER, 
PAUL A. HARRIS, SHANNON W. HART, 
MICHAEL A. HARTMAN, J. AARON 
HARWICK, MUHAMMAD A. HASSAN, 
MICHAEL R. HASTINGS, RAMONA R. 
HASTINGS, ROGER E. HATCH, DANIEL 
HATFIELD, DANIEL C. HATTLER, JOHN D. 
HAUGLAND, ROBIN L. HAYES, DAVID M. 
HEADLEY, JENNIFER P. HEBDON, ROBERT 
T. HEIMS, PATRICK M. HELLER, SCOTT 
HENDERSON, EMMITT HENDERSON  JR, 
JANICE L. HENDRICKSON, JOHN S. 
HENDRIX, ROBERT C. HENDRIX, 
RANDALL T. HENRIZI, MATTHEW J. 
HENRY, SHAUN P. HENRY, JAMES K. 
HEPPELL, JAMES F. HERGENROEATHER, 
DANIEL HERNANDEZ, ISRAEL 
HERNANDEZ, MANUEL S. HERNANDEZ, 
NESTOR HERNANDEZ, RUBEN C. 
HERNANDEZ, VICTOR M. HERRERA, 
MARK S. HERRING, LARRY R. 
HESSELGESSER, JR., BRYAN W. HEWITT, 
BYRON E. HIBSHMAN, MATTHEW P. 
HICKS, WADE HIGH, GARY W. HILL, 
JERALD HILL, RANDALL B. HILL, RENEE 
L. HILL, RICHARD A.  HINZO, ANNE-
MARIE HISKES, DIANA L. HODGES, MARK 
S. HODGES, KENNETH P. HODGES, SR., 
THOMAS E HOENES, FRANK J. HOERMAN, 
KEN L. HOFER, LLOYD J. HOFF, JR., 
ANDREW T. HOFFMAN, DAVID A. 
HOFFMAN, MARC G. HOFFMAN, CHARLES 
F. HOGQUIST, MIKE D. HOLDEN, SCOTT C. 
HOLDEN, VANESSA HOLLAND, 
ELIZABETH R. HOLLIDAY, STEPHEN T. 
HOLLIDAY, PAUL T. HOLMAN, WILLIAM 
B. HOLMES, RICHARD E. HOLMSTROM, 
SCOTT R. HOLSLAG, CHRISTOPHER J. 
HOLT, PAUL HOOK, GREGORY M. 
HOOLIHAN, JOEL G. HOOLIHAN, JOHN P. 
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HOOLIHAN, PERRY L. HOOPER, WILLIAM 
M. HOOVER, JOHN P. HORVATH, ROBERT 
W. HOVEY, JOHN P. HOWARD, LARRY S. 
HOWELL, ROGER G. HOWES, LESTER H. 
HUBBLE, PHILLIP D. HUBBS, PAUL D. 
HUBKA, DONA HUFFORD, TY L. 
HUFFORD, JAMES C. HUNTER, DAVID J. 
HUSTAD, STEVEN HUTCHINSON, JOHN J. 
HUYS, JOHN D. IAMMARINO, DAVID M. 
IORILLO, CRAIG E. ISBELL, BRIAN A. 
JACKSON, CORINNE M. JACKSON, 
DANIELLE J. JACKSON, ROBERT F. 
JACKSON, JANE E. JACOBSEN, TODD T. 
JAGER, JASON S. JARRELLS, LYNDA E. 
JARVIS, PHILIP T.  JARVIS, GREGORY A. 
JEBB, SCOTT E. JEDLICKA, DONNA L. 
JENNES, DAVID E. JENNINGS, JOHN W. 
JILLARD, ALEJANDRA D. JIMENEZ, 
DANIEL H. JIMENEZ, LOUIS B. JOHNS, 
ANTHONY K. JOHNSON, ANTONIO D. 
JOHNSON, BARRY E. JOHNSON, JANINE N. 
JOHNSON, JEFFREY M. JOHNSON, JOHN A. 
JOHNSON, KELLY J. JOHNSON, LUKE T. 
JOHNSON, MATTHEW J. JOHNSON, SARAH 
A. JOHNSON, TIMOTHY D. JOHNSON, 
BUDDY L. JOHNSON II, SCOTT W. 
JOHNSTON, BENNIE L. JOLLY, EDWARD 
V. JONES, JAMES W. JONES, RANDAL L. 
JONES, JEFFREY T. JORDON, MARC E. 
JOSE, THOMAS W. JOY, COREY B. JUNG, 
MONICA E. KAISER, ALAN B. KARSH, 
THEODORE M. KASINAK, EDWARD E. 
KASZYCKI, GEORGE C. KATHAN, 
CHARLES Q. KAYE, TODD V. KEARNS, 
TIMOTHY J. KEATING, BRIAN L. KEATON, 
JOHNNY F. KEENE, JR., DAVID W. 
KEESLING, PAUL N. KEFFER, NICHOLAS I. 
KELBAUGH, WILLIAM L. KELLNER, 
JACOB E. KERN, DAVID R. KERSCH, 
JASON L. KESSEL, MARK L. KEYSER, 
STEPHEN M. KINGKADE, THERESA L. 
KINNEY, RICHARD S. KIRCHHOFF, 
WILLIAM A. KNIGHT, CHRISTOPHER L. 
KNIGHTEN, JACK K. KNISH, PHILLIP P. 
KONZ, JOHNI KOSUGI, PATRICIA R. 
KRALL, DAVID KRIES, MICHAEL L. 
KROESCH, JOSEPH J. KROUSS, NANCY  
KULINSKI, JAMES A. KURUPAS, 
DEMETRIOS G. KYRES, PATRICK LACO, 
DAVID Y. LAMAKU, MICHAEL L. 
LAMBERT, DAVID  L. LANDMAN, 
CHARLES LARA, RONALD P. LARMOUR, 
DANIEL P. LASHER, STEPHEN J. LAURSEN, 
EDMUND J. LAVALLE II, SCOTT M. 
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LAWFORD, DAVID J. LAWLOR, GARY A. 
LAWRENCE, BROOKE P. LAWSON, VU A. 
LE, DANIEL W. LEACH, TONY C. LEE, 
SANDI F. LEHAN, LARRY W. LEIBER, 
RONALD W. LEMASTER, ROBERTO G. 
LEMUS, PATRICK A. LENHART, PAUL R. 
LENNON, JORGE R. LEON, MICHAEL A. 
LEONARD, ALBERTO H. LEOS, BRIAN C. 
LERIBEUS, JOHN B. LEVAN, RANDON E. 
LEVITT, KAZIMIERZ P. LEWAK, ROBERT 
A. LEWIS, ROBERT L. LEWIS, ILEDFONSO 
LIMON, ANTHONY J. LINARDI  JR., JAMES 
R. LIVESEY, ROBERT LOBATO, HENRY L. 
LOBEL, THOMAS E. LOFTIN, JAMES W. 
LONG, TIMOTHY M. LONG, GABRIEL A. 
LOPEZ, JOSEPH A. LOPEZ, GENE C. 
LOUCKS, DARRELL L. LOUGHREY, 
WARREN L. LOVELL, ARTURO LOVIO, 
ALFRED LOZANO, CHRISTOPHER M. 
LUCE, DANIEL D. LUTH, CHARLES D. 
LYALL, EDWARD D. LYNCH, ALBERT B. 
MACAWILI, EDWARD A. MACCONAGHY, 
BRETT N. MACFARLANE, ANDRE D. 
MACK, BERTHA MACTIERNAN, PETER 
MADRID, LOUIS J. MAGGI  JR., GEORGE N. 
MAGLARAS, BRYAN W. MANNING, CORY 
S. MAPSTON, CHARLES D. MARCINIAK, 
MARK A.  MARCOS, PAUL B. MARINO, 
TERRY M. MARQUEZ, DAVID R. 
MARSHALL, CHRISSY L. MARTINEZ, 
RUBEN C. MARTINEZ, RUDY MARTINEZ, 
BORIS MARTINEZ, JR., DENNIS L. MASON, 
ALBERT M. MASSEY, CHRISTIAN W. 
MATHEWS, KATHLEEN M. MAUZY, 
MELVIN D. MAXWELL, ROGER W. 
MCCARVEL, TERRY L. MCCLAIN, 
MICHAEL C. MCCOLLOUGH, MARK F. 
MCCULLOUGH, BENJAMIN I. MCCURRY, 
ALLEN C. MCDONALD, ROBERT R. 
MCDONALD, ADAM L. MCELROY, GUY 
MCELROY, SHARON A. MCFALLS, JAMES 
R. MCGHEE, JOHN T. MCGILL, LAURA L. 
MCGOWAN-MINTO, ED M. MCGUIRE, 
BILLY L. MCKINNEY, PATRICK J. 
MCLARNEY, SCOTT D. MCLELLAN, 
JEROME R. MCMANUS, STEVE L. 
MCMILLAN, JOEL R. MCMURRIN, KEVIN 
D. MCNAMARA, ROBERT M. MCQUIEN, 
CARLOS E. MEDINA, ROBERT N. 
MEISNER, MAURA J. MEKENAS-PARGA, 
SKIP A. MELHORN, LESLIE C. MERRILL, 
ROBERT W. METZ, DAVID R. MICHALEK, 
DEBRA S. MICHALEK, MARK A. MICHEL, 
WILLIAM MILES, CHRISTINA M. MILLER, 
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DAVID W. MILLER, DEREK T. MILLER, 
DOUGLAS D. MILLER, JEFFREY L. 
MILLER, THOMAS P. MILLER III, 
CATHERINE D. MILLETT, JERALD E. 
MILLS, JULIE R. MILLS, JOHN W. MINTO  
III, ROBERT D. MINTON, NICHOLAS R. 
MINX, AMEILIA L. MITCALF, DAVID L. 
MITCHELL, GARY E. MITROVICH, 
RICHARD A. MOBERLY, MICHAEL J. 
MOBLEY, JOSEPH W. MOLINOSKI, 
MICHAEL A. MOLLER, GARY F. 
MONDESIR, WILLIAM H. MONTEJANO, 
CHARLES M. MONTIERTH, DIANN M. 
MOODY, ROY D. MOODY, HOLLY A. 
MOORE, ROBERT MORA, ERIC T. 
MORALES, RAY A. MORALES, ANTHONY 
R. MORASCO, VICTOR J. MOREL, MARIO 
MORENO, DAVID L. MORRIS, CYNTHIA M. 
MORRISON, JAMES D. MORRISON, JAY V. 
MOSER, JACOB R. MOSTELLER, DAVID A. 
MOYA, KEVIN B. MOYNA, GREGORY R. 
MRVICH, GALEN L. MUNHOLAND, 
CYNTHIA L. MUNOZ, JUAN M. MUNOZ, 
KELENE MUNRO, GEORGE T. MUREN, 
SEAN H. MURPHY, WILLIAM P. MURPHY, 
GREGORY J. MYERS, CLINT J. NAFEY, 
STEVE W. NAKANISHI, JEFFREY T. 
NAPIER, RAYMOND A. NATAL, JAMES H. 
NEEDHAM, ADRIAN NEGRON, RICHARD 
B. NEHRICH, KENNETH E. NELSON, 
WILLIAM M. NEMEC, RICHARD E. 
NEMETZ, TIMOTHY G. NEUHAUS, 
ROBERT L. NEWQUIST, ALEXANDER 
NEZGODINSKY, JEFFREY R. NICHOLS, 
RONALD W. NICHOLS, ROBERT J. NICKLO, 
MICHAEL C. NIGRO, GILBERT L. NINNESS, 
DAVID S. NISLEIT, ROBERT H. NOBBS, 
PATRICK D. NORRIS, TIMOTHY G. 
NORRIS, LEE V. NORTON, REGINA Y. 
NORTON, AMBER G. NYGAARD, ERIC I. 
OBERNDORFER, THOMAS K. O'CONNELL, 
THOMAS A. ODANIELL, TAERANCE OH, 
RICHARD M. O'HANLON, GENE F. OLIVER, 
RENE C. OLIVER, SHELLY K. OLSON, 
BARNEY C. OLSON III, JAMES F. O'NEILL, 
THOMAS A. ORDEN, DANNY A. ORDUNO, 
GEORGE M. O'ROURKE, MICHAEL W. OTT, 
JERRY B. OWENS, JR., TROY P. OWENS, 
SR., MICHAEL A. PACE, JAVIER PADILLA, 
NORI T. PAPPERT, MICHAEL L. PARGA, 
RICHARD A. PARRELLA, KEVIN S. 
PATRICK, MELISSA M. PAVLENKO, 
PAMELA G. PAXTON, ANTHONY M. 
PELLEGRINO, GAIL A. PEMBLETON, 
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ARTHUR A. PEREA, JENNIFER L. PEREA, 
JESUS G. PEREA, EFREN PEREGRINA, 
CURTIS E. PERKINS, JEFFREY P. 
PETERSON, EDWARD K. PETRICK, DUANE 
E. PETTITT, HEATHER J. PETTY, DAVID V. 
PHAM, BRADLEY L. PHELPS, GEORGE A. 
PHILLIPS, BERNIE A. PICENO, E. MICHAEL 
PIDGEON, ERNEST J. PIERCE, GREG A. 
PINARELLI, CARL P. PIRA, DAN R. PLEIN, 
ERIC L. POLLOM, MARCELO POPULIN, 
LANCE E. POUND, JASON L. POWERS, 
CHRISTOPHER M. POZNANSKI, WAYNE J. 
PRATT, MICHAEL L. PRIDEMORE, SELIZA 
PRODIGALIDAD, BOB T. PRUTZMAN, 
MICHAEL J. PRUTZMAN, DUANE D. 
PUDGIL, JESUS W. PUENTE, BRETTON J. 
PUNCHES, DALANA S. PURSEL, JOHN A. 
QUEEN, COLLEEN L. QUENTIN-KING, 
TASHA K. QUEST, MAY B. QUINTANILLA, 
YESENIA P. QUINTOS, CHRIS J. RAAGAS, 
MICHAEL J. RABELL, FERNANDO 
RAMIREZ, MINERVA RAMOS, CARLOS R. 
REAL, ROBERT M. REDDING, JR., CRAIG R. 
REESOR, RICHARD H. REICHNER II, 
JAMES H. RENWICK, RODOLFO V. REYES, 
JULIAN M. RICO, STEVEN L. RIDDLE, 
JUAN RIVERA IIII, BRYAN A. ROBERTS, 
ELIAS RODRIGUEZ, MANUEL 
RODRIGUEZ, RAMIRO O. RODRIGUEZ, 
GARY A. ROESINK, DANIEL G. ROMAN, 
LUIS A. ROMAN, CARLOS RONQUILLO, 
JORGE A. ROSALES, ANGEL D. ROSARIO, 
MIGUEL ROSARIO, STEPHANIE J. ROSE, 
EDWARD L. ROSENBLOOM, ANGELA N. 
ROZSA, LAMAR J. ROZSA  JR., JEFFREY R. 
RUCKLE, RENEE D. RUFF, MARIAM 
SADRI, JOHN J. SAFLAR, LEM 
SAINSANOY, ALFONSO SALVATIERRA, 
JORGE SANCHEZ, JUAN SANCHEZ, SCOTT 
A. SANTAGATA, WILLIAM J. 
SANTARSIERO, EDWIN SANTIAGO, 
LAURA J. SANTIAGO, TITO L. SANTOS, 
ALEJANDRINO C. SANTOS III, 
CHRISTOPHER M. SAROT, DENNIS 
SAVAGE, JADE R. SAWYER, JASON A. 
SCALLY, CODY K. SCHAAF, JACK D. 
SCHAEFFER, MICHAEL J. SCHALDACH, 
MARGARET M. SCHAUFELBERGER, 
ROBERT M. SCHENKELBERG, GLEN R. 
SCHERER, CHERYL J. SCHLACK, JOEL A. 
SCHMID, PHILLIP E. SCHNEIDER, STEVE 
D. SCHNICK, PAUL W. SCHWENN, JASON 
A. SCOTT, ERIC P. SEITER, THOMAS G. 
SEIVER, LLOYD A. SENTINELLA, ROBERT 
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C. SHANDS, PATRICK J. SHANLEY, 
ARTHUR H. SHANNON, CHRISTIAN T. 
SHARP, MARVIN L. SHAW, STEVEN M. 
SHAW, DANIEL K. SHEPHERD, DAMON E. 
SHERMAN, MARK G. SHERMAN, MICHAEL 
S. SHIRAISHI, SCOTT W. SHIVELY, DALE 
T. SHOCKLEY  SR., DANIEL L. SHORE, 
AMALIA K. SIDHU, JESSE D. SIMEROTH, 
THOMAS G. SIMONDS, ROBERT E. 
SIMPSON, RANDALL J. SKINN, CHARLES 
A. SLEEPER, ALLEN T. SLUSS, JAMES 
SMITH, JAMES F. SMITH, JOHN C. SMITH, 
JOSEPH SMITH, ROBERT W. SMITH, 
TIMOTHY M. SMITH, WILLIAM T. SMITH, 
DANIEL J. SMYTH, JOSEPH G. SNARPONIS, 
ROBERT W. SNEAD, CESAR A. SOLIS, 
DAVID L. SOLIVEN, ANDREW SORBIE, 
BRANDY A. SORBIE, MARK T. SOULIA, 
ANDREW J. SPAGNOLO, ANDREW E. 
SPEAR, DAVID P. SPECK, EDWIN P. SPEER, 
WAYNE R. SPEES, SCOTT C. SPILLANE, 
DAVID E. SPITZER, MICHAEL L. STACY, 
JOHN STADLER, ERIC A. STAFFORD, 
DAVID W. STAFFORD  JR., DANIEL 
STANLEY, PHILIP J. STANLEY, STEVEN 
STATON, NEAL A. STEFFEN, BLAIR A. 
STEPHENS, CYNDI L. STETSON, WILLIAM 
S. STETSON, JAMES A. STEWART, 
KENNETH P. STEWART, ELLIOT S. 
STIASNY, ROBERT F. STINSON, ROBERT 
G. STITES, ROSS E. STONE, ROGER A. 
STONIER, JR., JERRY G. STRATTON, JOHN 
J. STRICKLIN, SPENCER E. STURM, 
WILLIAM F. STUTZ, MARK C. SULLIVAN, 
PATRICK L. SULLIVAN, THOMAS A. 
SULLIVAN, ROBERT R. SUMMERS, 
VALARI C. SUMMERS, COLONEL F. 
SURRATT, DAVID M. SURWILO, ALEKSEI 
E. SVIRIDOV, MICHAEL J. SWANSON, 
WILLIAM S. SWEENEY, MICHAEL A. 
SWEET, JAMES SWEETSER, JEFFREY D. 
SWETT, JOHN E. SZAKARA, ESMERALDA 
TAGABAN, WILLIAM D. TAITANO, LOUIS 
A. TAMAGNI, MICHAEL T. TANSEY, JOHN 
H. TATE, DANA D. TAYLOR, JAMES T. 
TEER, VICTOR J. TEJEDA, KAREN-ANNE 
TENNEY, MARVIN E. TERRY, 
CHRISTOPHER  M. TEWS, ALVIN THACH, 
JOSEPH I.T. THOMAS, JOYCELYN S. 
THOMAS, GEORGE R. THOMAS III, 
FREDDIE B. THORNTON, JR., JOHANNA M. 
THRASHER, LINDA H. TIBBETTS, LEE D. 
TIMMERMAN, LINDA L. TOUSLEY, 
MERRIT M. TOWNSEND, JOHN M. TRACY, 



 
 

 
05-CV-1629 DMS (RBB) / 06-CV-0538 

- 11 - 
CONSOLIDATED FIFTH AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND OTHER RELIEF 

 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

JOHN A. TRENT, JAMES F. TULUMELLO, 
MEGHAN R. TURI, KIMBERLY K. 
UKUZATO EASTO, THOMAS G. 
UNDERWOOD, EDWIN VALENTIN, 
RAMON VALENTIN, WENDY J. VALENTIN, 
LOUIS E. VALENZUELA, MARK A. VAN 
ABEL, JANINE A. VAN ANTWERP, 
EDWARD F. VAN LANINGHAM, RODNEY 
L. VANDIVER, JAMES G. VARONFAKIS, 
KEVIN G. VASQUEZ, LINDA G. VASQUEZ, 
CHRISTOPHER M. VELOVICH, MICHELLE 
R. VELOVICH, KENNETH J. VERDONE, 
EDWARD M. VERDUZCO, RICHARD  
VERGARA, DANIEL R. VILE, PATRICK T. 
VINSON, JOHN B. VIVOLI, DUANE A. 
VOSS, GARY R. VOSS, GERARD M. 
WACLAWEK, SYLVESTER WADE, JR., 
KEVIN L. WADHAMS, ELYSE S. WAGNER, 
GAYE D. WAGNER, THOMAS WAGNER, 
KRISTOPHER M. WALB, CURTIS J. 
WALDECKER, STEVEN R. WALDHEIM, 
DAVID R. WALKER, DANIEL K. WALL, 
MITCHELL B. WALLACE, GREGORY H. 
WALTON, SEAN J. WATERMAN, DONALD 
E. WATKINS, MARK S. WATKINS, 
VICTORIA D. WATKINS, DEAN C. WAY, 
MATTHEW E. WEATHERSBY, SEDONIA B. 
WEATHERSBY, STEPHEN E. WEBB, 
ELIZABETH D. WEBER, CARL W. WEBER 
III, JORDAN V. WELLS, ROBERT D. WELLS, 
DIANE WENDELL, DANIEL B. WESTNEY, 
TEOFILO WESTON, RAYMOND  J. 
WETZEL, SCOTT S. WILKINSON, 
ALPHONSO WILLIAMS, BRENT L. 
WILLIAMS, DAVID W. WILLIAMS, 
DONALD C. WILLIAMS, MICHAEL D. 
WILLIAMS, MICHAEL R. WILLIAMS, 
MICHAEL S. WILLIAMS, TIMOTHY R. 
WILLIAMS, DARRYL L. WILLIS, JEFF D. 
WILLKOMM, ROBERT E. WILLS, DAN M. 
WILSON, FREDERICK L. WILSON, 
LAWRENCE E. WILSON, DAVID J. 
WINANS, ERIC A. WISEMAN, DAWN E. 
WOLFE, KARIN D. WONG, KEVIN G. 
WONG, THOMAS A. WOOD, STEVEN M. 
WOODROW, JUDITH L. WOODS, WILLIAM 
H. WOODS IV, JOHN M. WRAY, STEPHEN 
W. WRIGHT, JEFFREY J. WUEHLER, 
MICHAEL V. YAPTANGCO, GEORGE A. 
YOUKHANNA, ADAM G. YOUNG, BRYAN 
V. YOUNG, MATHEW T. ZAITZ, PETER J. 
ZAJDA, STEVEN S. ZASUETA, FELIX 
ZAVALA, JASON P. ZDUNICH, MATTHEW 
T. ZDUNICH, ANGELA M. ZDUNICH-
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GOLDMAN, MONICA ZEPEDA, TIMOTHY 
P. ZETTERLUND, EVAN B. ZIEGLER, 
JEFFREY P. ZIEGLER, JAMES A. ZIRPOLO, 
LAURA M. ZIZZO, LOUIS M. ZIZZO, 
EDWARD M. ZWIBEL, DAVID P. 
ACHENBACH, ROBERT C. ACOSTA, JULIE 
M. ADAMS, ROBERT H. ADAMS, JASON D. 
AGUILAR, RICHARD A.  AGUILAR, 
WESLEY T. ALBERS, MELVIN C. ALLEN, 
KAREN A. ALMOS, KAREN A. ALMOS, 
MARK C. AMANCIO, PETER A. AMANCIO, 
KEVIN M. AMMON, PEGGY A. ANDERSON, 
THOMAS J. ANDREWS, JOSE J. 
ARGUELLES, WESLEY R. ASHCRAFT, 
JOHN B. BAILEY, RONALD W. BAILIFF, 
ROBERT BANUELOS, DEBBIE K. BECKER, 
CHARLES J. BELLETTI, JOE A. 
BENAVIDES, KELLY L. BESKER, DANIEL 
A. BINKERD, VICTORIA M. BINKERD, 
DEAN R BISHOP, CARLTON F. BLACK, 
BRIAN R. BLAGG, EDWARD L. BLUM, 
STEVEN B. BOURASA, CHRISTOPHER P. 
BOWERS, DOUGLAS M. BRACA, CINDY L. 
BRADY, PAUL D. BRINKERHOFF, JAMES 
A. BROOKS, JAMES R. BROWN, ROBERT D. 
BROWN, WILLIAM M. BROWN, THOMAS J. 
BROXTERMANN, RICHARD J. BULETTE, 
DAVID W. BURKE, CHRISTOPHER G. 
BUXTON, LAURIE CAIRNCROSS, FRANCIS 
M. CALI, JOHN L. CALL, JANET M. 
CAMPBELL, HECTOR S. CARLOS, JOHN D. 
CARPENTER, JOHN J. CARROLL, C. D'ANN 
CARTER, JEFFERY S. CARTER, PETER J. 
CARUSO, NYDIA M. CASTRO, JESUS G. 
CESENA, YEZENIA E. CHAVEZ, ROBERT 
CHRISTANO, GREGORY D. CLARK, JAMES 
C. CLARK, JOHN R. CLEAVINGER, 
WILLIAM L. CLEM, JAMES R. CLIFT, 
GARRY COLLINS, PAUL D. CONLEY, PAUL 
J. CONNELLY, LISA M. COOK, TIMOTHY S. 
COYLE, CLINT J. CROCKETT, PETER H. 
CRUZ, JR., JOSHUA T. DA FOE, DARBY L. 
DARROW, ROBERT W. DAUN, LISA K. 
DAVIES, CHARLES R. DAVIS, KELLY R. 
DAVIS, TERRI L. DAVIS-COLE, COLIN K. 
DAY, WILLIAM G. DAY, JEFFREY A. 
DEAN, BRUCE C. DEBORD, MARIA I. 
DELGADILLO, ALEJANDRO DIAZ, STEVE 
P. DICKINSON, DANIEL W. DIERDORFF, 
JR., FELICISIMO M. DIZON III, STEPHEN C. 
DOUGLAS, ERIC T. DRILLING, DAVID P. 
DUNHOFF, MITCHELL L. DUNHOFF, 
CRAIG T. EASTEP, DONNA EASTEP, 
ELMER NEM. EDWARDS, CHAD W. 



 
 

 
05-CV-1629 DMS (RBB) / 06-CV-0538 

- 13 - 
CONSOLIDATED FIFTH AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND OTHER RELIEF 

 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

ELLIOTT, HECTOR J. EMERSON, JAMES D. 
ENGLISH, WALTER M. ESCOBAR, IRVING 
A. ESCOBEDO, ROBERT C. FABREGAS, 
BILL FARRAR, MICHAEL W. FARRELL, 
DONALD L. FASCHING, SUE E. FASCHING, 
JUNAR FERNANDEZ, RITER J. FLORES, 
RICHARD A. FOX, BRIAN S. FRENCH, 
DAVID A.  GARCIA, GEORGE E. GARVEY, 
DAVID K. GIBSON, CORY E. GILMORE, 
RONALD D. GLASS, STEVEN T. GLASSER, 
JUAN R.  GONZALES, HILDA GONZALEZ-
REED, SCOTT T. GOSNELL, MICHAEL J. 
GOTTFRIED, JARVIS J. GRESHAM, 
MICHAEL GROFF, JEFFREY G. GROSS, 
PERRY J. GROSSMANN DANIEL L. 
GRUBBS, KURT L. GRUBE, MARTIN T. 
GUERRA, MICHAEL A. HALEY, DANIEL G. 
HALL, ROBERT J. HAWKINS, ALAN J. 
HAYWARD, GEORGE A. HEAD, 
FREDERICK J. HELM, III, CRYSTAL A. 
HERNANDEZ, CARLTON R. HERSHMAN, 
DAVID A. HICKEY, DANIEL J. HIGDON, 
ROGER E. HIGGINS, JR., STEVEN G. 
HOBBS, GEORGE A. HOFFMAN, JOHN F. 
HOGARTH, LARRY D. HOLLOWAY, 
DARRYL A. HOOVER, HECTOR E. HOYTE, 
KENNETH L. HUBBS, KENNETH E. 
IMPELLIZERI, JAY M. JACOB, JEROME O. 
JOAQUIN, RICHARD L. JOHNSON, JR., 
DAVID H. JONES, PEPPER L. KELLY, ANNA 
M. KNUTH, ASSIE L. KRAMER, GERRY M. 
KRAMER, DENNY K. KREMER, RICHARD 
G. KRUEGER, JR., DARRELL D. KYLER, 
HOWARD A. LABORE, CARLOS D. 
LACARRA, JOSE V. LAGUDA, JOSE V. 
LAGUDA, CHRISTOPHER C. LARSON, 
FARRELL K. LAYTON, GORDON R. LEEK, 
JOHN LETTERI, JACK T. LILLY, JAIME 
LIMON, DARRELL K. LITTLE, JESSE W. 
LOPEZ, ROBERT C. LOPEZ, JONATHAN 
LOWE, MARK S. LUCCHESI, ERNESTO 
LUNA, SHANE A. LYNN, RICHARD 
MALER, RONALD A. MANAIGRE, JEFFREY 
S. MARTINEZ, PHILLIP A. MARTZ, JR., 
MICHAEL MASCHMEIER, RALPH C. 
MAUZY, PERRY L. MCIVOR, PATRICK J. 
MCLARNEY, MICHAEL D. MCLEOD, 
SHARON K. MCNAIR, JOSE M. MENDEZ, 
MICHAEL J. MENDEZ, KERRY A. 
MENSIOR, RUDOLPH S. MERHAR, 
RICHARD D. METZ, JR., CINDY L. MEYER, 
PETER R. MILLS, BRIAN D. MOORE, 
MIGUEL P. MORALES, PETER A. 
MORALES, SCOTT A. MORRISON, 
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EDWARD D. MURPHY II, CRAIG L. 
MYROM, ANGELICA NAVARRO-MORAN, 
GORDON R. NIKKOLA, MATTHEW E. 
NOVAK, EDWARD GARRICK NUGENT, JR., 
JAY R. ODOM, HAROLD J. OLIVER, JR., 
JASON P. OMUNDSON, SANDRA S. 
OPLINGER, LEE A. ORSINO, WILLIAM T. 
ORVOSH, RAUL R. PADILLA, DENISE R. 
PAGE, RICHARD C. PARPART, JAMAL X. 
PASHA III, PAUL E. PAXTON, JACK R. 
PEARSON, CHARLES J. PECK III, 
VANTHOEUN PEN, JOSE P. PEREZ, MARCO 
L. PEREZ, RICHARD PERKINS, VERNON J. 
PETERSON, SCOTT M. PICKARD, KEVIN W. 
PIERCE, ERNESTO PINEDO, JR., JOHN R. 
PINER, MARC A. PITUCCI, JOSE L. RAMOS, 
JOSEPH A. RAMOS, RALPH RAMOS, 
MARCUS RAMSEY, KEVIN C. RAUSIS, 
DWIGHT P. REECE, ROY E. REED, 
ANTHONY REESE, JR., JOHN J. REIF, 
WENDY S. RENO, JACOB M. RESCH, 
ROBERT L. REX, ROLANDA M. RICARDEZ, 
RONALD L. RICE, PHILLIP H. RICE IV, 
BENDA T. RICHMOND, WARD A. 
RICKMAN, DARIN  J. RIES, ANDRES H. 
RIOS, CARMELIN RIVERA, FRANCISCO 
RIVERA, MARIA D. RIVERA, GARY V. 
RIVERS, THOMAS A. RIZZO, TODD J. 
ROBERTSON, LARRY J. ROBERTSON II, 
STEVE R. ROBINSON, JASON P. ROCHA, 
ANA B. RODRIGUEZ, JAIME R. 
RODRIGUEZ, BOBBY D. ROLLINS, MARIO 
I. ROMANO, FAUSTO W. ROMERO, DAVID 
L. ROOT, PAUL R. RORRISON, STEVEN M. 
ROSENBLOOM, RAYMOND H. ROWE, JR., 
MICHAEL RUBIO, ROBERT S. RUDE, BRAD 
D. RUFF, JOHN S. RUSSELL, JOSEPH L. 
RUVIDO, JAMES W. RYAN, LYNN D. 
RYDALCH, IVAN A. SABLAN, ARTEMIS D. 
SADLIER, ALAN J. SAMUELSON, TRISTAN 
T. SCHMOTTLACH, JAMES C. SCHORR, 
ERNESTO SERVIN, STEPHEN SHEBLOSKI, 
LORI A. SINCLAIR, STEVEN E. SKINNER, 
GEORGE D. SMITH, SANDRA P. SMULLEN, 
GINA M. SPADACINI, ANTHONY J. 
SPAGNOLO, HOWARD W. SPETTER, 
JOSEPH R. STEFFEN, JOSEPH R. STEFFEN, 
MARC A. STEPHENS, JEFFREY J. 
STERLING, LESLIE W. STEWART, 
NATALIE A. STONE, DANIEL T. STUBER, 
BRIAN J. SZYMONIK, RUDOLPH G. TAI, 
JR., MARK A. TALLMAN, PHILIP J. 
TERHAAR, SCOTT A. THOMPSON, DANIEL 
D. TONECK, TERENCE N. TORGERSEN, 
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FRANCISCO J. TORRES, SCOTT A. 
TOWNSEND, LARRY D. TRIPLETT, JR., 
BERNARD P. UPDIKE, JR., DOMINIC L. 
VALAILE, JIMMY I. VALLE, RON W. VAN 
CLEAVE, DALE VAN HORN, ROBERT J. 
VAN WULVEN, MICHAEL E. VARGAS, 
DANNY VEGA, SYLVIA A. VELLA, 
STEVEN D. VILLALOBOS, JOSEPH T. 
WAGGAMAN, GAYE D. WAGNER, JAMES 
M. WATKINS, JR., ROSS M. WEAVER, 
DIANNA M. WEBB, MICHAEL J. WEBB, 
MURDOCK J E. WELTZIEN, DAVID A. 
WEST, DAVID L. WHITFIELD, RICHARD A.  
WIDNER, JONATHAN D. WIESE, MARK A. 
WILLHELM, DARRELL L. WILLIAMS, 
DONNA L. WILLIAMS, GARRETT N. 
WILLIAMS, TINA M. WILLIAMS, HOWARD 
C. WILLIAMS, JR., FRANK H. WILSON, 
ROGER K. WONG, JOHN R. YOUNG, 
ANTHONY ZELJEZNJAK, HANS S. 
ZINGHEIM, SIMON V. TY, THOMAS M. 
RHODES, SUZANNE HUNTINGTON, 
JERRILYN SOBER, DONNA WESCOTT, 
HEIDI HAWLEY, MAX G. VERDUZCO, 
DANNY W. HOLLISTER, BRETT H. 
BURKETT, ROBERT C. BURLISON, 
RICHARD J. CARLSON, HENRY L. CASTRO, 
MARTIN G. CASTRO, JOHN COCHRAN JR., 
ARTHUR D. DOHERTY III, ANTOINE N. EL-
ASSIS, DALE A. FLAMAND, MIGUEL A. 
GARCIA, RYAN P. GAULT, KENNETH S. 
HARGROVE, ROBERT W. HERZIG, 
CHARLES M. HUDGINS, ROY B.  HULBERT, 
PIA A. IVERSEN, SANDRA L.  
LACHAPELLE, BRIAN P. LUCCHESI, 
SCOTT D. NALIBOFF, ALAN M. NICHOLAS, 
CHRISTOPHER D. O'QUINN, FREDERICK 
PARENTI, DOUGLAS L. PICKETT, 
MICHAEL J. PRUTZMAN, SANDRA I. 
RAPALEE, BRET A. RIGHTHOUSE, SUSAN 
M.  RIGHTHOUSE, JEFFREY SALINAS, 
DORINDA K. DODD, RICHARD GARCIA, 
DAVID G. MALEY, BRIAN MARVEL, 
MICHAEL S. MORAN, ALLEN R. BAYLOR, 
ALI D. CAMPBELL, ELSA L. CASTILLO, 
JAIME D. CONTI, LARRY W. DARWENT, 
JORGE DURAN, JEREMY M. DURRANT, 
STEVEN W. DYER, SARAH FOSTER, 
RICHARD G. FREEDMAN, RALPH 
GALANGUE, LOUIS PAUL GALANTE III, 
MARK J. GASTEIGER, FLORANTE E. 
GONZALES JR., TRISTAN GONZALEZ, 
LEVI B. HARBIN, ERIC B. HAYS, DANA R. 
HOOVER, GREGG M. HUMPHREY, 
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WILLIAM JACOBSON, KYLE KELLEY, 
CHRISTOPHER W. KILBY, JOSEPH W. 
LEHR, LEE C. MARTIN, DANIEL A. MEYER, 
TONY C. NAPUTI, BRADLEY M. 
O'DONNELL, MICHAEL A. RAMSAY, 
KENNETH C. ROBBINS, JEFFREY B. 
SCRUGGS, GAYLON W. SELLS, ADAM T. 
SHARKI, JAMES E. STEVENS, MICHAEL 
STIRK, DAWN SUMMERS, ROBERT J. 
SYLVESTER, WILLIAM D. SNYDER, JOHN 
THERIEN, STEVEN C. THORN, BRETT T. 
TOOVEY, JAMES J. TROUSSEL, ROBERT S. 
TRUDERUNG, TIMOTHY L. UNDERWOOD, 
YVETTE R. VASQUEZ, ROXIE C. VIGIL, 
DICK L. WARD, MICHAEL W. WEAVER, 
RONALD M. WEISS, THOMAS S. WETZEL, 
TRACEY D. WILLIAMS, STEVEN L. WITT, 
RICHARD M. ZWEIFACH SR., LAURIE D. 
AGNEW, AGUSTIN ASCENCIO, PETER E. 
BROWN, THOMAS D. CARMODY, JORGE 
CARRANZA, PATRICK R. DERNING, 
EDUARDO E. ESCAMILLA, ALAN R. 
FRAGOSO, LISA A. HARTMAN, DAVID F. 
HIGHSMITH, GARY D. HILDRETH, NOEL L. 
MCELFRESH, MICHAEL A. PADGETT, 
ARTHUR L. SCOTT, 
 
              Plaintiffs,  
 
     vs. 
 
CITY OF SAN DIEGO, DOES ONE 
THROUGH TEN, 
 
  Defendants.  

  

  Plaintiffs, on behalf of themselves, by and through their attorneys, Jackson DeMarco Tidus 

Petersen & Peckenpaugh, bring this action for damages and other relief against Defendant, City of 

San Diego, for its violations of employment practices codified in 29 U.S.C. § 201, et. seq and 

breach of contract, alleging the facts and claims as follows: 

1. This action by active and retired San Diego peace officers seeks, among other things, 

the recovery of unpaid overtime compensation for pre-shift, post-shift and off-site activities, 

compensation due for improper premium rate calculations, damages and penalties for missed meal 

break periods (“Code 7s”), reimbursements due for work-related expenses, and denial of earned 
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Compensatory Time Off.  

I. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. This Court has jurisdiction to hear this Complaint and to adjudicate the claims alleged 

herein by virtue of 28 U.S.C. §1331 because this is a civil action arising out of the laws of the 

United States; supplemental jurisdiction may be exercised over the state law claims under 28 

U.S.C. §1367(a).  This action is brought pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 

("FLSA”), 29 U.S.C. §201, et seq. 

3. Venue is proper in the Southern District of California, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391(b), 

because a substantial part of the employment violations complained of occurred in the Southern 

District and Defendant resides in the Southern District. 

II. THE PARTIES 

4. At all times relevant to this Complaint, the following individuals were employed by 

Defendant City of San Diego: Marcus R. Abbe, Thomas E. Abbott, Jr., David G. Abrams, Sabin M. 

Abrams, Kristen B. Adams, Lori M. Adams, Robert W. Adams, Simon Adams, Robert Adauto Jr., 

R. Elizabeth Addington, Armando R. Aguilar, Edward R. Aguirre, Michael A. Aiken, Leslie A. 

Albrecht, Daniel T. Albright, Donald A. Albright, Richard Allen, Katherine E. Allison, Cathy N. 

Allister, Karen A. Almos, Jesse R. Almos Jr, Alan R. Alvarez, Arnolfo B. Ambito, Carlos A. 

Amezcua, Annette M. Anderson, Travis W. Anderson, Mark S. Annis, Robert W. Anschick, 

Ricardo Apodaca, Oscar A. Armenta, Scott J. Armstrong, James W. Arthur, Christopher T. Asbell, 

Frank Ashcraft, Anthony A. Atkins, Robert W. Atwood, Edward D. Austin, John W. Austin, John 

Autolino, Gary Avalos III, Michael J. Baier, Teresa Bailey, Robert M. Baird Jr., Todd R. Baker, 

James D. Baker   Jr., Vincent J. Bales, Joseph P.  Bane, Sean A. Bannan, Kevin S. Barnard, Scott T. 

Barnes, Bridget P. Barnett, Suzie K. Barney, Charles R. Barrett, Scott D. Bartolomei, Tina C. 

Bassett, Tod E. Bassett, David R. Bautista, Michael A. Beamesderfer, Jana M. Beard, Carole J. 

Beason, David W. Beathard, Edward L. Becker, William F. Becker, Paul J. Becotte, Steven M. 

Behrendt, Cynthia M. Beilstein, John P. Beilstein, Kevin P. Belland, Brigitta J. Belz, Michael W. 

Belz, Michael R. Bendixen, Teryl L. Bernard, Gerald F. Berner Jr., David A. Bertrand, Rebecca E. 
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Bigbie, Robert R. Bigbie, Gregory R. Bisesto, Dennis Bishop, Betty Bixby, Lynn M Bixel, Jeffrey 

D. Blackford, Gifford D. Blakesley, Mark T. Blakesley, Thomas M. Boerum, Eugene H. 

Bojorquez, Daniel W. Boldt, Donald J. Borinski, Thaddeus W. Borkowski, Nicolas Borrelli, 

Thomas R. Bostedt, Matthew E. Botkin, Arthur O. Bowen, Gary L. Bowen, Jr., Clayton Bowers, 

James W. Boyd, Phillip K. Bozarth, Frank P. Bradley, James M. Bradley, Julie M. Bradley, Tracy 

D. Braun, Daniel G. Brent, Lisa L. Bressler, Robert R. Bressler, Daniel M. Brinkerhoff, Russell D. 

Bristol, Frank J. Brito, Kevin M Brooks, Ronald Broussard, Neal N. Browder  Jr., Douglas M. 

Brown, Jon M. Brown, Ronald O. Brown, Scott H. Brown, Troy A. Brown, Gregory W. Brown  Jr., 

Joy M. Brugman, Christopher M. Brush, Terrance L. Bryan, Mark J. Bua, Deborah W. Burger, 

Randy P. Burgess, Christina D. Burhans, Joshua P. Burkhardt, Timothy A. Burns, Daniel A. 

Burow, John D. Buttle, Richard A. Butts, Bruce T. Byrd, Jeanne M. Byrd, Phillip D. Cady, 

Lawrence B. Cahill, William D. Cahill, Jene L'Mont Calloway, Arthur L. Calvert, Christen M. 

Cameron, Arturo C. Campa, William H. Campbell, Claudia Canto, Ruth S. Cardona, Theodore M. 

Carignan, Karrie L. Carlson, Mark A. Carlson, Thomas J. Carlyon IV, Daniel P. Caropreso, Frank 

L. Caropreso, Jr, Javier Carranza, Robert T. Carroll, Scott Carter, Tony B. Carter, William J. 

Carter, Roderick A. Casey, Roberto A. Casillas, Joseph B. Castillo, Clinton E. Castle, Cesar Castro, 

Ricky F. Castro, Rudy P. Castro, Jr., Arthur H. Cavada, Misty R. Cedrun, Daniel E. Cerar, George 

Cesena, Carlos Chacon, John Chaney, Mark A. Chavez, Blake A. Cheary, Jonathan C. Cheng, Jon 

P. Cherski, James H. Chiles, Jeffrey W. Chione, Raphael R. Cimmarrusti, Dolores M. Cirino, Brent 

E. Cisneros, Dale L. Clark, John C. Clark, Joseph A. Clark, Lamont H. Clark, Robert D. Clark, 

Raymond P. Clark  Sr., Deborah A. Clem, James H. Clem, Michael A. Clippinger, Rex Cole, Jr., 

Christopher P. Collier, Kimberly A. Collier, James T. Collins, Bernie T. Colon, Luis M. Colon, 

Victor S. Colvin, Donald R. Cone, Robert D. Connaughy, David Contreras, Sean R. Conway, 

Lloyd E. Cook, Robert H. Cook, Patrick J. Cooley, Phil B. Cooper, Noe F. Cordero, Brian K. 

Cornell, Jeannette L. Cornell, Gary F. Corner, Robert M. Cornett, Henry D. Corrales, Deborah A. 

Cotellessa, Carol V. Council, Chad E. Crenshaw, Marco A. Crisostomo, Tyrone H. Crosby, Robert 

P. Cruz, Vedasto A. Cruz, Jr., William L. Cuddy  III, Celso G. Cueva, James P. Culligan, Ralph A. 
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Cummings, David W. Cupples, Christopher P. Curran, Laurie J. Curran, Fenella R. Custer, Mariusz 

Czas, Denise F. Dailey, Leroy K. Dailey, Josephine I. Dains, Scott W. Daniels, Robert W. Dare, 

Eric C. Davis, Garry R. Davis, John W. Davis, Michael J. Davis, Richard E. Davis, William T. 

Davis  Jr., Dean L. Davison, Jerome Dawson, Michael O. Day, William J. Day, Jr., Alexander De 

Armas, Charles De la Cruz, Susan M. de la Pena, Deana E. De Los Reyes, Romeo C. De Los 

Reyes, Michael J. Dean, Conrado V. Decastro, Geoffrey S. Decesari, Jonathan M. DeGuzman, Raul 

Delgadillo, Roberto L. Delgadillo, Constandinos A. Delimitros, Jovanna R. Derrough, Edward A. 

DeVowe, James F. Dickinson, John (Jack) R. Didelot, Jennifer E. Dishon, Roy J. Doakes, Matthew 

W. Dobbs, Wayne R. Doeden, Donald J. Dolezal, Jr., James E. Dollins, Marianne L. Dougherty, 

Ronald H. Dougherty, David F. Douglas, Samuel D. Douglas, Gregory T. Drilling, Arthur W. 

Dubois III, Brett A. Dudley, Kevin C. Duffy, John G. Dunbar, Jeffrey Dunn, Anthony L. Dupree, 

Joseph M. Durand, Wende M. Eckard, Richard K. Edgil, Frederick G. Edwards, Michael J. 

Edwards, Sheryl L. Edwards, Randal W. Eichmann, Roland H. Elkins, John Elliott, Shari L. 

Ellithorpe, William Ellithorpe  Jr., Darryl L. Emerson, Ernesto Encinas, Leland English, Richard D. 

Ensign, Julie M. Epperson, Steven S. Epperson, Edward G. Erbe, Manuel Escalante, Christopher C. 

Escudero, Christopher D. Everett, Christine M. Farmer, Debra L. Farrar, Jay P. Farrington, 

Timothy K. Faubel, Paul J. Fay, David L. Felkins, Andrew L. Fellows, Jeffrey M. Fellows  Sr., 

Michael J. Fender, Alejandro M. Fernandez, James D. Filley, Robert G. Filley, Rodney W. Fischer, 

Lawanda M. Fisher, Larry E. Fixsen, Michael F. Flanagan, Gregory A. Flood, Miguel M. Flores, 

Raul Flores, Steve T. Flores, Gilbert H. Flores, Jr., Anna M. Ford, James M. Ford, Mark E. 

Foreman, Colin R. Forsey, Kenneth N. Fortier, Natalie F. Fortier, Richard C. Fortuna, Robert M. 

Fowler, Charles R. Fox, Phillip J. Franchina, Reginald F. Frank, Hugg French, Kevin B. French, 

William L. Frew, Brian J. Freymueller, Kevin B. Friedman, Aaron K. Frodente, Marco A. Fuentes, 

Andrea S. Furst, Mark S. Gain, Gerry D. Gapusan, David D. Garcia, Ivan Garcia, Linda E. Garcia, 

Manuel M. Garcia, Ronald R. Garcia, Ralph J. Garcia  Jr., Justin C. Garlow, Edwin R. Garrette, 

Larry D. Gathright, James R. Gee, Paul  B. Geis, John P. Gener, Frank A. Gerbac, Frederick R. 

Gerke, Troy A. Gibson, Robert I. Gilbert, David N. Gilligan, Casey D. Gini, Shanna W. Glazewski, 
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Dewayne F. Glazewski II, Loretta L. Glick, Brian M. Goldberg, James G. Golembiewski, Edward 

R. Gomez, Juan J. Gomez, Gary S. Gonzales, Jordi Gonzalez, Michael V. Gordon, Charles M. 

Graham, Richard R. Grano, James E. Graves, Cedric J. Green, Christine A. Gregg, Mary K. 

Gressel, William T. Griffin, Eric Groeger, Mike Gutierrez, Mark G. Haas, Gregory A. Haisan, 

David C. Hall, Lawrence A. Hall, Patrick S. Hall, Ronald G. Hall, Michelle Hansen-Garcia, Jerry P. 

Hara, John J. Harberth, Corinne Hard, Joseph P. Harper, Paul A. Harris, Shannon W. Hart, Michael 

A. Hartman, J. Aaron Harwick, Muhammad A. Hassan, Michael R. Hastings, Ramona R. Hastings, 

Roger E. Hatch, Daniel Hatfield, Daniel C. Hattler, John D. Haugland, Robin L. Hayes, David M. 

Headley, Jennifer P. Hebdon, Robert T. Heims, Patrick M. Heller, Scott Henderson, Emmitt 

Henderson  Jr, Janice L. Hendrickson, John S. Hendrix, Robert C. Hendrix, Randall T. Henrizi, 

Matthew J. Henry, Shaun P. Henry, James K. Heppell, James F. Hergenroeather, Daniel 

Hernandez, Israel Hernandez, Manuel S. Hernandez, Nestor Hernandez, Ruben C. Hernandez, 

Victor M. Herrera, Mark S. Herring, Larry R. Hesselgesser, Jr., Bryan W. Hewitt, Byron E. 

Hibshman, Matthew P. Hicks, Wade High, Gary W. Hill, Jerald Hill, Randall B. Hill, Renee L. 

Hill, Richard A.  Hinzo, Anne-Marie Hiskes, Diana L. Hodges, Mark S. Hodges, Kenneth P. 

Hodges, Sr., Thomas E Hoenes, Frank J. Hoerman, Ken L. Hofer, Lloyd J. Hoff, Jr., Andrew T. 

Hoffman, David A. Hoffman, Marc G. Hoffman, Charles F. Hogquist, Mike D. Holden, Scott C. 

Holden, Vanessa Holland, Elizabeth R. Holliday, Stephen T. Holliday, Paul T. Holman, William B. 

Holmes, Richard E. Holmstrom, Scott R. Holslag, Christopher J. Holt, Paul Hook, Gregory M. 

Hoolihan, Joel G. Hoolihan, John P. Hoolihan, Perry L. Hooper, William M. Hoover, John P. 

Horvath, Robert W. Hovey, John P. Howard, Larry S. Howell, Roger G. Howes, Lester H. Hubble, 

Phillip D. Hubbs, Paul D. Hubka, Dona Hufford, Ty L. Hufford, James C. Hunter, David J. Hustad, 

Steven Hutchinson, John J. Huys, John D. Iammarino, David M. Iorillo, Craig E. Isbell, Brian A. 

Jackson, Corinne M. Jackson, Danielle J. Jackson, Robert F. Jackson, Jane E. Jacobsen, Todd T. 

Jager, Jason S. Jarrells, Lynda E. Jarvis, Philip T.  Jarvis, Gregory A. Jebb, Scott  E. Jedlicka, 

Donna L. Jennes, David E. Jennings, John W. Jillard, Alejandra D. Jimenez, Daniel H. Jimenez, 

Louis B. Johns, Anthony K. Johnson, Antonio D. Johnson, Barry E. Johnson, Janine N. Johnson, 
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Jeffrey M. Johnson, John A. Johnson, Kelly J. Johnson, Luke T. Johnson, Matthew J. Johnson, 

Sarah A. Johnson, Timothy D. Johnson, Buddy L. Johnson II, Scott W. Johnston, Bennie L. Jolly, 

Edward V. Jones, James W. Jones, Randal  L. Jones, Jeffrey T. Jordon, Marc E. Jose, Thomas W. 

Joy, Corey B. Jung, Monica E. Kaiser, Alan B. Karsh, Theodore M. Kasinak, Edward E. Kaszycki, 

George C. Kathan, Charles Q. Kaye, Todd V. Kearns, Timothy J. Keating, Brian L. Keaton, Johnny 

F. Keene, Jr., David W. Keesling, Paul N. Keffer, Nicholas I. Kelbaugh, William L. Kellner, Jacob 

E. Kern, David R. Kersch, Jason L. Kessel, Mark L. Keyser, Stephen M. Kingkade, Theresa L. 

Kinney, Richard S. Kirchhoff, William A. Knight, Christopher L. Knighten, Jack K. Knish, Phillip 

P. Konz, Johni Kosugi, Patricia R. Krall, David Kries, Michael L. Kroesch, Joseph J. Krouss, 

Nancy  Kulinski, James A. Kurupas, Demetrios G. Kyres, Patrick Laco, David Y. Lamaku, Michael 

L. Lambert, David  L. Landman, Charles Lara, Ronald P. Larmour, Daniel P. Lasher, Stephen J. 

Laursen, Edmund J. LaValle II, Scott M. Lawford, David J. Lawlor, Gary A. Lawrence, Brooke P. 

Lawson, Vu A. Le, Daniel W. Leach, Tony C. Lee, Sandi F. Lehan, Larry W. Leiber, Ronald W. 

LeMaster, Roberto G. Lemus, Patrick A. Lenhart, Paul R. Lennon, Jorge R. Leon, Michael A. 

Leonard, Alberto H. Leos, Brian C. Leribeus, John B. Levan, Randon E. Levitt, Kazimierz P. 

Lewak, Robert A. Lewis, Robert L. Lewis, Iledfonso Limon, Anthony J. Linardi  Jr., James R. 

Livesey, Robert Lobato, Henry L. Lobel, Thomas E. Loftin, James W. Long, Timothy M. Long, 

Gabriel A. Lopez, Joseph A. Lopez, Gene C. Loucks, Darrell L. Loughrey, Warren L. Lovell, 

Arturo Lovio, Alfred Lozano, Christopher M. Luce, Daniel D. Luth, Charles D. Lyall, Edward D. 

Lynch, Albert B. Macawili, Edward A. MacConaghy, Brett N. Macfarlane, Andre D. Mack, Bertha 

MacTiernan, Peter Madrid, Louis J. Maggi  Jr., George N. Maglaras, Bryan W. Manning, Cory S. 

Mapston, Charles D. Marciniak, Mark A.  Marcos, Paul B. Marino, Terry M. Marquez, David R. 

Marshall, Chrissy L. Martinez, Ruben C. Martinez, Rudy Martinez, Boris Martinez, Jr., Dennis L. 

Mason, Albert M. Massey, Christian W. Mathews, Kathleen M. Mauzy, Melvin D. Maxwell, Roger 

W. McCarvel, Terry L. McClain, Michael C. McCollough, Mark F. McCullough, Benjamin I. 

McCurry, Allen C. McDonald, Robert R. McDonald, Adam L. McElroy, Guy McElroy, Sharon A. 

McFalls, James R. McGhee, John T. McGill, Laura L. McGowan-Minto, Ed M. McGuire, Billy L. 
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McKinney, Patrick J. McLarney, Scott D. McLellan, Jerome R. McManus, Steve L. McMillan, Joel 

R. McMurrin, Kevin D. McNamara, Robert M. McQuien, Carlos E. Medina, Robert N. Meisner, 

Maura J. Mekenas-Parga, Skip A. Melhorn, Leslie C. Merrill, Robert W. Metz, David R. Michalek, 

Debra S. Michalek, Mark A. Michel, William Miles, Christina M. Miller, David W. Miller, Derek 

T. Miller, Douglas D. Miller, Jeffrey L. Miller, Thomas P. Miller  III, Catherine D. Millett, Jerald 

E. Mills, Julie R. Mills, John W. Minto  III, Robert D. Minton, Nicholas R. Minx, Ameilia L. 

Mitcalf, David L. Mitchell, Gary E. Mitrovich, Richard A. Moberly, Michael J. Mobley, Joseph W. 

Molinoski, Michael A. Moller, Gary F. Mondesir, William H. Montejano, Charles M. Montierth, 

Diann M. Moody, Roy D. Moody, Holly A. Moore, Robert Mora, Eric T. Morales, Ray A. Morales, 

Anthony R. Morasco, Victor J. Morel, Mario Moreno, David L. Morris, Cynthia M. Morrison, 

James D. Morrison, Jay V. Moser, Jacob R. Mosteller, David A. Moya, Kevin B. Moyna, Gregory 

R. Mrvich, Galen L. Munholand, Cynthia L. Munoz, Juan M. Munoz, Kelene Munro, George T. 

Muren, Sean H. Murphy, William P. Murphy, Gregory J. Myers, Clint J. Nafey, Steve W. 

Nakanishi, Jeffrey T. Napier, Raymond A. Natal, James H. Needham, Adrian Negron, Richard B. 

Nehrich, Kenneth E. Nelson, William M. Nemec, Richard E. Nemetz, Timothy G. Neuhaus, Robert 

L. Newquist, Alexander Nezgodinsky, Jeffrey R. Nichols, Ronald W. Nichols, Robert J. Nicklo, 

Michael C. Nigro, Gilbert L. Ninness, David S. Nisleit, Robert H. Nobbs, Patrick D. Norris, 

Timothy G. Norris, Lee V. Norton, Regina Y. Norton, Amber G. Nygaard, Eric I. Oberndorfer, 

Thomas K. O'Connell, Thomas A. Odaniell, Taerance Oh, Richard M. O'Hanlon, Gene F. Oliver, 

Rene C. Oliver, Shelly K. Olson, Barney C. Olson III, James F. O'Neill, Thomas A. Orden, Danny 

A. Orduno, George M. O'Rourke, Michael W. Ott, Jerry B. Owens, Jr., Troy P. Owens, Sr., 

Michael A. Pace, Javier Padilla, Nori T. Pappert, Michael L. Parga, Richard A. Parrella, Kevin S. 

Patrick, Melissa M. Pavlenko, Pamela G. Paxton, Anthony M. Pellegrino, Gail A. Pembleton, 

Arthur A. Perea, Jennifer L. Perea, Jesus G. Perea, Efren Peregrina, Curtis E. Perkins, Jeffrey P. 

Peterson, Edward K. Petrick, Duane E. Pettitt, Heather J. Petty, David V. Pham, Bradley L. Phelps, 

George A. Phillips, Bernie A. Piceno, E. Michael Pidgeon, Ernest J. Pierce, Greg A. Pinarelli, Carl 

P. Pira, Dan R. Plein, Eric L. Pollom, Marcelo Populin, Lance E. Pound, Jason L. Powers, 
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Christopher M. Poznanski, Wayne J. Pratt, Michael L. Pridemore, Seliza Prodigalidad, Bob T. 

Prutzman, Michael J. Prutzman, Duane D. Pudgil, Jesus W. Puente, Bretton J. Punches, Dalana S. 

Pursel, John A. Queen, Colleen L. Quentin-King, Tasha K. Quest, May B. Quintanilla, Yesenia P. 

Quintos, Chris J. Raagas, Michael J. Rabell, Fernando Ramirez, Minerva Ramos, Carlos R. Real, 

Robert M. Redding, Jr., Craig R. Reesor, Richard H. Reichner II, James H. Renwick, Rodolfo V. 

Reyes, Julian M. Rico, Steven L. Riddle, Juan Rivera IIII, Bryan A. Roberts, Elias Rodriguez, 

Manuel Rodriguez, Ramiro O. Rodriguez, Gary A. Roesink, Daniel G. Roman, Luis A. Roman, 

Carlos Ronquillo, Jorge A. Rosales, Angel D. Rosario, Miguel Rosario, Stephanie J. Rose, Edward 

L. Rosenbloom, Angela N. Rozsa, Lamar J. Rozsa  Jr., Jeffrey R. Ruckle, Renee D. Ruff, Mariam 

Sadri, John J. Saflar, Lem Sainsanoy, Alfonso Salvatierra, Jorge Sanchez, Juan Sanchez, Scott A. 

Santagata, William J. Santarsiero, Edwin Santiago, Laura J. Santiago, Tito L. Santos, Alejandrino 

C. Santos III, Christopher M. Sarot, Dennis Savage, Jade R. Sawyer, Jason A. Scally, Cody K. 

Schaaf, Jack D. Schaeffer, Michael J. Schaldach, Margaret M. Schaufelberger, Robert M. 

Schenkelberg, Glen R. Scherer, Cheryl J. Schlack, Joel A. Schmid, Phillip E. Schneider, Steve D. 

Schnick, Paul W. Schwenn, Jason A. Scott, Eric P. Seiter, Thomas G. Seiver, Lloyd A. Sentinella, 

Robert C. Shands, Patrick J. Shanley, Arthur H. Shannon, Christian T. Sharp, Marvin L. Shaw, 

Steven M. Shaw, Daniel K. Shepherd, Damon E. Sherman, Mark G. Sherman, Michael S. Shiraishi, 

Scott W. Shively, Dale T. Shockley  Sr., Daniel L. Shore, Amalia K. Sidhu, Jesse D. Simeroth, 

Thomas G. Simonds, Robert E. Simpson, Randall J. Skinn, Charles A. Sleeper, Allen T. Sluss, 

James Smith, James F. Smith, John C. Smith, Joseph Smith, Robert W. Smith, Timothy M. Smith, 

William T. Smith, Daniel J. Smyth, Joseph G. Snarponis, Robert W. Snead, Cesar A. Solis, David 

L. Soliven, Andrew Sorbie, Brandy A. Sorbie, Mark T. Soulia, Andrew J. Spagnolo, Andrew E. 

Spear, David P. Speck, Edwin P. Speer, Wayne R. Spees, Scott C. Spillane, David E. Spitzer, 

Michael L. Stacy, John Stadler, Eric A. Stafford, David W. Stafford  Jr., Daniel Stanley, Philip J. 

Stanley, Steven Staton, Neal A. Steffen, Blair A. Stephens, Cyndi L. Stetson, William S. Stetson, 

James A. Stewart, Kenneth P. Stewart, Elliot S. Stiasny, Robert F. Stinson, Robert G. Stites, Ross 

E. Stone, Roger A. Stonier, Jr., Jerry G. Stratton, John J. Stricklin, Spencer E. Sturm, William F. 
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Stutz, Mark C. Sullivan, Patrick L. Sullivan, Thomas A. Sullivan, Robert R. Summers, Valari C. 

Summers, Colonel F. Surratt, David M. Surwilo, Aleksei E. Sviridov, Michael J. Swanson, William 

S. Sweeney, Michael A. Sweet, James Sweetser, Jeffrey D. Swett, John E. Szakara, Esmeralda 

Tagaban, William D. Taitano, Louis A. Tamagni, Michael T. Tansey, John H. Tate, Dana D. 

Taylor, James T. Teer, Victor J. Tejeda, Karen-Anne Tenney, Marvin E. Terry, Christopher  M. 

Tews, Alvin Thach, Joseph I.T. Thomas, Joycelyn S. Thomas, George R. Thomas III, Freddie B. 

Thornton, Jr., Johanna M. Thrasher, Linda H. Tibbetts, Lee D. Timmerman, Linda L. Tousley, 

Merrit M. Townsend, John M. Tracy, John A. Trent, James F. Tulumello, Meghan R. Turi, 

Kimberly K. Ukuzato Easto, Thomas G. Underwood, Edwin Valentin, Ramon Valentin, Wendy J. 

Valentin, Louis E. Valenzuela, Mark A. Van Abel, Janine A. Van Antwerp, Edward F. Van 

Laningham, Rodney L. Vandiver, James G. Varonfakis, Kevin G. Vasquez, Linda G. Vasquez, 

Christopher M. Velovich, Michelle R. Velovich, Kenneth J. Verdone, Edward M. Verduzco, 

Richard  Vergara, Daniel R. Vile, Patrick T. Vinson, John B. Vivoli, Duane A. Voss, Gary R. Voss, 

Gerard M. Waclawek, Sylvester Wade, Jr., Kevin L. Wadhams, Elyse S. Wagner, Gaye D. Wagner, 

Thomas Wagner, Kristopher M. Walb, Curtis J. Waldecker, Steven R. Waldheim, David R. Walker, 

Daniel K. Wall, Mitchell B. Wallace, Gregory H. Walton, Sean J. Waterman, Donald E. Watkins, 

Mark S. Watkins, Victoria D. Watkins, Dean C. Way, Matthew E. Weathersby, Sedonia B. 

Weathersby, Stephen E. Webb, Elizabeth D. Weber, Carl W. Weber III, Jordan V. Wells, Robert D. 

Wells, Diane Wendell, Daniel B. Westney, Teofilo Weston, Raymond  J. Wetzel, Scott S. 

Wilkinson, Alphonso Williams, Brent L. Williams, David W. Williams, Donald C. Williams, 

Michael D. Williams, Michael R. Williams, Michael S. Williams, Timothy R. Williams, Darryl L. 

Willis, Jeff D. Willkomm, Robert E. Wills, Dan M. Wilson, Frederick L. Wilson, Lawrence E. 

Wilson, David J. Winans, Eric A. Wiseman, Dawn E. Wolfe, Karin D. Wong, Kevin G. Wong, 

Thomas A. Wood, Steven M. Woodrow, Judith L. Woods, William H. Woods IV, John M. Wray, 

Stephen W. Wright, Jeffrey J. Wuehler, Michael V. Yaptangco, George A. Youkhanna, Adam G. 

Young, Bryan V. Young, Mathew T. Zaitz, Peter J. Zajda, Steven S. Zasueta, Felix Zavala, Jason P. 

Zdunich, Matthew T. Zdunich, Angela M. Zdunich-Goldman, Monica Zepeda, Timothy P. 
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Zetterlund, Evan B. Ziegler, Jeffrey P. Ziegler, James A. Zirpolo, Laura M. Zizzo, Louis M. Zizzo, 

Edward M. Zwibel, David P. Achenbach, Robert C. Acosta, Julie M. Adams, Robert H. Adams, 

Jason D. Aguilar, Richard A.  Aguilar, Wesley T. Albers, Melvin C. Allen, Karen A. Almos, Karen 

A. Almos, Mark C. Amancio, Peter A. Amancio, Kevin M. Ammon, Peggy A. Anderson, Thomas 

J. Andrews, Jose J. Arguelles, Wesley R. Ashcraft, John B. Bailey, Ronald W. Bailiff, Robert 

Banuelos, Debbie K. Becker, Charles J. Belletti, Joe A. Benavides, Kelly L. Besker, Daniel A. 

Binkerd, Victoria M. Binkerd, Dean R Bishop, Carlton F. Black, Brian R. Blagg, Edward L. Blum, 

Steven B. Bourasa, Christopher P. Bowers, Douglas M. Braca, Cindy L. Brady, Paul D. 

Brinkerhoff, James A. Brooks, James R. Brown, Robert D. Brown, William M. Brown, Thomas J. 

Broxtermann, Richard J. Bulette, David W. Burke, Christopher G. Buxton, Laurie Cairncross, 

Francis M. Cali, John L. Call, Janet M. Campbell, Hector S. Carlos, John D. Carpenter, John J. 

Carroll, C. D'Ann Carter, Jeffery S. Carter, Peter J. Caruso, Nydia M. Castro, Jesus G. Cesena, 

Yezenia E. Chavez, Robert Christano, Gregory D. Clark, James C. Clark, John R. Cleavinger, 

William L. Clem, James R. Clift, Garry Collins, Paul D. Conley, Paul J. Connelly, Lisa M. Cook, 

Timothy S. Coyle, Clint J. Crockett, Peter H. Cruz, Jr., Joshua T. Da Foe, Darby L. Darrow, Robert 

W. Daun, Lisa K. Davies, Charles R. Davis, Kelly R. Davis, Terri L. Davis-Cole, Colin K. Day, 

William G. Day, Jeffrey A. Dean, Bruce C. Debord, Maria I. Delgadillo, Alejandro Diaz, Steve P. 

Dickinson, Daniel W. Dierdorff, Jr., Felicisimo M. Dizon III, Stephen C. Douglas, Eric T. Drilling, 

David P. Dunhoff, Mitchell L. Dunhoff, Craig T. Eastep, Donna Eastep, Elmer M. Edwards, Chad 

W. Elliott, Hector J. Emerson, James D. English, Walter M. Escobar, Irving A. Escobedo, Robert 

C. Fabregas, Bill Farrar, Michael W. Farrell, Donald L. Fasching, Sue E. Fasching, Junar 

Fernandez, Riter J. Flores, Richard A. Fox, Brian S. French, David A.  Garcia, George E. Garvey, 

David K. Gibson, Cory E. Gilmore, Ronald D. Glass, Steven T. Glasser, Juan R.  Gonzales, Hilda 

Gonzalez-Reed, Scott T. Gosnell, Michael J. Gottfried, Jarvis J. Gresham, Michael Groff, Jeffrey 

G. Gross, Perry J. Grossmann Daniel L. Grubbs, Kurt L. Grube, Martin T. Guerra, Michael A. 

Haley, Daniel G. Hall, Robert J. Hawkins, Alan J. Hayward, George A. Head, Frederick J. Helm, 

III, Crystal A. Hernandez, Carlton R. Hershman, David A. Hickey, Daniel J. Higdon, Roger E. 
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Higgins, Jr., Steven G. Hobbs, George A. Hoffman, John F. Hogarth, Larry D. Holloway, Darryl A. 

Hoover, Hector E. Hoyte, Kenneth L. Hubbs, Kenneth E. Impellizeri, Jay M. Jacob, Jerome O. 

Joaquin, Richard L. Johnson Jr., David H. Jones, Pepper L. Kelly, Anna M. Knuth, Assie L. 

Kramer, Gerry M. Kramer, Denny K. Kremer, Richard G. Krueger, Jr., Darrell D. Kyler, Howard 

A. Labore, Carlos D. Lacarra, Jose V. Laguda, Jose V. Laguda, Christopher C. Larson, Farrell K. 

Layton, Gordon R. Leek, John Letteri, Jack T. Lilly, Jaime Limon, Darrell K. Little, Jesse W. 

Lopez, Robert C. Lopez, Jonathan Lowe, Mark S. Lucchesi, Ernesto Luna, Shane A. Lynn, Richard 

Maler, Ronald A. Manaigre, Jeffrey S. Martinez, Phillip A. Martz, Jr., Michael Maschmeier, Ralph 

C. Mauzy, Perry L. Mcivor, Patrick J. Mclarney, Michael D. Mcleod, Sharon K. Mcnair, Jose M. 

Mendez, Michael J. Mendez, Kerry A. Mensior, Rudolph S. Merhar, Richard D. Metz, Jr., Cindy L. 

Meyer, Peter R. Mills, Brian D. Moore, Miguel P. Morales, Peter A. Morales, Scott A. Morrison, 

Edward D. Murphy II, Craig L. Myrom, Angelica Navarro-Moran, Gordon R. Nikkola, Matthew E. 

Novak, Edward Garrick Nugent, Jr., Jay R. Odom, Harold J. Oliver, Jr., Jason P. Omundson, 

Sandra S. Oplinger, Lee A. Orsino, William T. Orvosh, Raul R. Padilla, Denise R. Page, Richard C. 

Parpart, Jamal X. Pasha III, Paul E. Paxton, Jack R. Pearson, Charles J. Peck III, Vanthoeun Pen, 

Jose P. Perez, Marco L. Perez, Richard Perkins, Vernon J. Peterson, Scott M. Pickard, Kevin W. 

Pierce, Ernesto Pinedo, Jr., John R. Piner, Marc A. Pitucci, Jose L. Ramos, Joseph A. Ramos, 

Ralph Ramos, Marcus Ramsey, Kevin C. Rausis, Dwight P. Reece, Roy E. Reed, Anthony Reese, 

Jr., John J. Reif, Wendy S. Reno, Jacob M. Resch, Robert L. Rex, Rolanda M. Ricardez, Ronald L. 

Rice, Phillip H. Rice IV, Benda T. Richmond, Ward A. Rickman, Darin  J. Ries, Andres H. Rios, 

Carmelin Rivera, Francisco Rivera, Maria D. Rivera, Gary V. Rivers, Thomas A. Rizzo, Todd J. 

Robertson, Larry J. Robertson II, Steve R. Robinson, Jason P. Rocha, Ana B. Rodriguez, Jaime R. 

Rodriguez, Bobby D. Rollins, Mario I. Romano, Fausto W. Romero, David L. Root, Paul R. 

Rorrison, Steven M. Rosenbloom, Raymond H. Rowe, Jr., Michael Rubio, Robert S. Rude, Brad D. 

Ruff, John S. Russell, Joseph L. Ruvido, James W. Ryan, Lynn D. Rydalch, Ivan A. Sablan, 

Artemis D. Sadlier, Alan J. Samuelson, Tristan T. Schmottlach, James C. Schorr, Ernesto Servin, 

Stephen Shebloski, Lori A. Sinclair, Steven E. Skinner, George D. Smith, Sandra P. Smullen, Gina 
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M. Spadacini, Anthony J. Spagnolo, Howard W. Spetter, Joseph R. Steffen, Joseph R. Steffen, 

Marc A. Stephens, Jeffrey J. Sterling, Leslie W. Stewart, Natalie A. Stone, Daniel T. Stuber, Brian 

J. Szymonik, Rudolph G. Tai, Jr., Mark A. Tallman, Philip J. Terhaar, Scott A. Thompson, Daniel 

D. Toneck, Terence N. Torgersen, Francisco J. Torres, Scott A. Townsend, Larry D. Triplett, Jr., 

Bernard P. Updike, Jr., Dominic L. Valaile, Jimmy I. Valle, Ron W. Van Cleave, Dale Van Horn, 

Robert J. Van Wulven, Michael E. Vargas, Danny Vega, Sylvia A. Vella, Steven D. Villalobos, 

Joseph T. Waggaman, Gaye D. Wagner, James M. Watkins, Jr., Ross M. Weaver, Dianna M. 

Webb, Michael J. Webb, Murdock J E. Weltzien, David A. West, David L. Whitfield, Richard A. 

Widner, Jonathan D. Wiese, Mark A. Willhelm, Darrell L. Williams, Donna L. Williams, Garrett 

N. Williams, Tina M. Williams, Howard C. Williams, Jr., Frank H. Wilson, Roger K. Wong, John 

R. Young, Anthony Zeljeznjak, Hans S. Zingheim, Simon V. Ty, Thomas M. Rhodes, Suzanne 

Huntington, Jerrilyn Sober, Donna Wescott, Heidi Hawley, Max G. Verduzco, Danny W. Hollister, 

Brett H. Burkett, Robert C. Burlison, Richard J. Carlson, Henry L. Castro, Martin G. Castro, John 

Cochran Jr., Arthur D. Doherty III, Antoine N. El-Assis, Dale A. Flamand, Miguel A. Garcia, Ryan 

P. Gault, Kenneth S. Hargrove, Robert W. Herzig, Charles M. Hudgins, Roy B.  Hulbert, Pia A. 

Iversen, Sandra l.  Lachapelle, Brian P. Lucchesi, Scott D. Naliboff, Alan M. Nicholas, Christopher 

D. O'Quinn, Frederick Parenti, Douglas L. Pickett, Michael J. Prutzman, Sandra I. Rapalee, Bret A. 

Righthouse, Susan M. Righthouse, Jeffrey Salinas, Dorinda K. Dodd, Richard Garcia, David G. 

Maley, Brian Marvel, Michael S. Moran, Allen R. Baylor, Ali D. Campbell, Elsa L. Castillo, Jaime 

D. Conti, Larry W. Darwent, Jorge Duran, Jeremy M. Durrant, Steven W. Dyer, Sarah Foster, 

Richard G. Freedman, Ralph Galangue, Louis Paul Galante III, Mark J. Gasteiger, Florante E. 

Gonzales Jr., Tristan Gonzalez, Levi B. Harbin, Eric B. Hays, Dana R. Hoover, Gregg M. 

Humphrey, William Jacobson, Kyle Kelley, Christopher W. Kilby, Joseph W. Lehr, Lee C. Martin, 

Daniel A. Meyer, Tony C. Naputi, Bradley M. O'Donnell, Michael A. Ramsay, Kenneth C. 

Robbins, Jeffrey B. Scruggs, Gaylon W. Sells, Adam T. Sharki, James E. Stevens, Michael Stirk, 

Dawn Summers, Robert J. Sylvester, William D. Snyder, John Therien, Steven C. Thorn, Brett T. 

Toovey, James J. Troussel, Robert S. Truderung, Timothy L. Underwood, Yvette R. Vasquez, 
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Roxie C. Vigil, Dick L. Ward, Michael W. Weaver, Ronald M.  Weiss, Thomas S. Wetzel, Tracey 

D. Williams, Steven L. Witt, Richard M. Zweifach Sr., Laurie D. Agnew, Agustin Ascencio, Peter 

E. Brown, Thomas D. Carmody, Jorge Carranza, Patrick R. Derning, Eduardo E. Escamilla, Alan 

R. Fragoso, Lisa A. Hartman, David F. Highsmith, Gary D. Hildreth, Noel L. McElfresh, Michael 

A. Padgett, and Arthur L. Scott (“Plaintiffs”).   

5. Defendant, City of San Diego (“Defendant City”) is a political subdivision of the State 

of California, a local government “employer” under 29 U.S.C. § 203(r) & (s).  

6. Plaintiffs are ignorant of the names and capacities of the individuals or entities sued 

herein as Does One through Ten, inclusive, and therefore sue these Defendants by these fictitious 

names.  Plaintiffs will amend this Complaint to allege the true names and capacities when they have 

been ascertained.  Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that each of the 

fictitiously named Defendants is in breach of contract and/or legally responsible in some manner 

for the occurrences, losses and injuries alleged in this Complaint and for Plaintiffs’ damages. 

7. At all times relevant to this Complaint, the acts and omissions of a natural person-

Defendant who is or may be identified as an official, employee or agent of an entity-Defendant, 

was undertaken in accordance with and represents the official policies of the latter or was 

undertaken and represents the official policies or procedures of the same, for which the former is 

sued in both his or her individual and official capacity.  At all times relevant to this Complaint, 

each Defendant conspired, committed, ordered, directed, supervised, allowed, planned, ratified, 

concealed, organized, or otherwise participated in one or more of the acts alleged below.  

III. ALLEGATIONS 

 A.  Collective Bargaining Agreements 

8. It is the pattern and practice of Defendant City to address employment concerns specific 

to San Diego peace officers through the collective bargaining process and the Plaintiffs’ 

representative employee organization, San Diego Police Officers’ Association.   

9. Defendant City and Plaintiffs’ bargaining unit routinely enter into collective bargaining 

negotiations during which labor-management agreements are created for a specific, limited term.  
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These labor-management agreements are employment contracts for the specified term and are 

known individually as a Memorandum Of Understanding (“MOU”).  While MOUs govern the 

employment agreement between the individual Plaintiff and Defendant City, an operative MOU 

supplements the minimum standards set forth under FLSA.   

10. The current labor-management agreement between Defendant City and the employee 

organization representing Plaintiffs, is an enforceable contract after adoption by Defendant City’s 

legislative body, and will come into effect July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008 (‘07-‘08 MOU), a 

true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference herein.  The 

last labor-agreement was in effect from July 1, 2003 to June 30, 2005 and is now expired (“`03-`05 

MOU”), a true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit B and incorporated by reference 

herein.  The prior labor-management agreement between Defendant City and the employee 

organization representing Plaintiffs, that became an enforceable contract after being adopted by 

Defendant City’s legislative body, was in effect from July 1, 2000 to June 30, 2001 (“`00-`01 

MOU”), a true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit C and incorporated by reference 

herein.  (Collectively referred to as “MOUs”, incorporated herein by each reference thereto).  

11. The MOUs are put into effect by acts of legislative counsel through ordinances.  The 

specific salary terms of the MOUs are approved and put into effect through a separate and distinct 

ordinance or resolution.  The relevant salary ordinances are attached as true and correct copies, and 

incorporated by reference herein, as Exhibit D (2000 Salary Ordinance, O- 18806), Exhibit E (2001 

Salary Ordinance, O-18943), Exhibit F (2002 Salary Ordinance, O-19068), 2003 Salary Ordinance, 

2004 Salary Ordinances, Exhibit G (2005 Salary Ordinance, O-19384), Exhibit H (2006 Salary 

Ordinance, O-19384), Exhibit I (2007 Salary Ordinance, O-2007-124, presented to council on April 

16, 2007 - finalization still pending).  Plaintiffs are informed and believe that there exists Salary 

Ordinances for 2003 and 2004; however, Plaintiffs have been unable to locate these ordinances on 

the Defendant City’s website. 

12. At times the collective bargaining process fails to result in an MOU.  During the 

intermittent times between collective bargaining agreements, specifically 2001-2003 and 2005-
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2007, Defendant City imposed Last, Best, Final Offers (“LBFO”) upon the employee organization 

representing the Plaintiffs, true and correct copies of which are attached as Exhibits J & K, 

respectively, and incorporated by reference herein.  The LBFO is not an agreement, rather it is a 

government imposition of terms for a one year period.  During the years in which there is not an 

MOU (i.e. there is a LBFO) the same pay rates and allowances applied during the periods of the 

last operative MOU remain in effect (unless modified by the LBFO).  

13. Plaintiffs’ representative bargaining unit and Defendant City are parties to the MOUs.  

Plaintiffs are not parties to the MOUs, but are the intended beneficiaries of the terms contained in 

the MOUs.  Each peace officer entered into a separate hiring agreement with the City, which does 

not contain a provision that mandates use of the optional grievance procedure under the MOUs.   

14. The intent of the parties to the MOUs was that the internal grievance procedure under 

the MOUs is optional and limited in scope to the interpretation or application of a particular term of 

the MOUs.  Plaintiffs are otherwise excepted from the internal grievance procedure because (1) the 

subject of this controversy lies outside the City's authority, (2) pursuit of a grievance would result 

in irreparable harm, (3) the grievance remedy would be inadequate, (4) the outcome of the 

grievance remedy is already known, rendering the grievance procedure futile, (5) this controversy 

involves constitutional rights and matters of important public policy, and/or (6) this controversy 

involves a class action.  

15. Plaintiffs have complied with the California Government Tort Claims Act (“CGTA”), 

although Plaintiffs’ maintain the CGTA not apply to any claims in these consolidated cases.  A true 

and correct copy of the notice is attached as Exhibit L, and incorporated by reference herein.  

B. Custom, Policy, Pattern and Practice of City Of San Diego 

16. Local government may develop a custom, policy, pattern and/or practice of policy 

and/or procedure that is understood to govern the behavior of the people that are employed.  This 

custom, policy, pattern and/or local practice may or may not be codified in a policy or procedure 

manual.  The customs, patterns and/or local practice are the result of typical behaviors, common 

adoption, habit or understandings of the personnel and have the force and effect of law.  29 U.S.C. 
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§207(o)(2)(A)(ii) & (B); 29 C.F.R. § 553.23(c); Wilson v. City of Charlotte, North Carolina, 964 

F.2d 1391 (4th Cir. 1992). 

17. Compensatory Time Off (“CTO”) is a day off work paid to the employee as a regular 

work day without the employee having to take vacation or illness time.  CTO developed as a 

response to the highly stressful nature of safety personnel’s work.  CTO is an earned benefit 

granted upon completion of work in lieu of wages.  ’00-’01 MOU, Ex.  C, Art. 32(5)&(6), p. 43; 

03-`05 MOU, Ex. B, Art. 32(5)&(6), p. 42-43; ’07-’08 MOU, Ex. A, Art. 32(6), p. 7-9; 2006 

LBFO, Ex. L, p. 2.   At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendant City has provided the peace 

officers a choice between CTO or overtime.  It is understood that should the peace officer choose 

CTO, the officer will be allowed to take the earned paid days off.   

18. Effective July 1, 2007, the election of CTO will shift from the discretion of the 

individual peace officer to the Police Chief.  ’07-’08 MOU, Ex. A, Art. 32(6), p. 7. 

19. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendant City has offered, guaranteed, and will 

allow San Diego safety employees to use their CTO either through specific MOU agreements or 

because of local custom, policy, pattern and practice during periods in which there is no operative 

MOU in effect.   

20. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendant City adopted, followed and promoted 

policies and procedures that resulted in its refusal and/or failure to accurately record, keep and 

maintain time and wage records required by law. 

 

21. Common Overtime Violations: At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendant City 

required Plaintiffs to work, perform duties and spend time that constituted time and hours worked, 

for which Defendant City willfully, voluntarily, deliberately and intentionally failed and refused to 

count as time and hours actually worked by peace officers, who in turn were not compensated at 

their regular, premium or overtime wage rate for, including but not limited to, the following time 

and hours worked— 

a. Time spent preparing for, participating in and performing pre-shift and post-shift 
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activities that are required, integral and an indispensable part of the work and 

principal activities of peace officers, including but not limited to pre-shift, post-shift 

and shift change briefings and related activities, preparation for roll-call, inspections, 

preparation, review and/or finalization of arrest and/or investigation reports, 

preparing, traveling and making court appearances, deployment related activities, 

collecting, returning, cleaning and/or maintaining equipment and/or uniforms; 

b. Time spent donning, doffing, dressing-up and dressing-down of protective and/or 

other specialized equipment, gear and outfitting that is integral and indispensable to 

the work and principal activities of peace officers, including but not limited to 

getting dressed into uniform and vest, checking all equipment attached to their belt 

to insure that all safety equipment was functioning properly;  

c. Time spent walking to and from pre-shift and post-shift activities, work areas, 

stations, the locker room, roll-call, the briefing room, the equipment room, posts and 

patrol vehicles; and,  

d. Failing to properly calculate paid and unpaid overtime compensation based on a 

formula that includes all compensation, including but not limited to specialty pay, 

education incentive pay, advanced and intermediate Police Officer Standards 

Training certificates, and other wage enhancements, and uniform allowances treated 

by Defendant City as wages.   

22. Common Code 7 Violations: At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendant City 

required Plaintiffs to work without meal break periods during every shift, in violation of their 

MOUs and FLSA standards for paid meal breaks and law.   

23. Common Reimbursement Violations: At all times relevant to this Complaint, each 

Plaintiff has incurred necessary expenditures in direct consequence of the discharge of his or her 

duties and/or in obedience to the directions of Defendant City.  Furthermore, the uniform allowance 

for all peace officers under the MOUs only applies to items covered by Article 26.II.A and Article 

26.II.A, respectively.  There are additional uniform allowances under the MOUs for Mounted 
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Patrol, SWAT, Harbor Patrol, Beach Enforcement Team, Canine Unit, Bike Patrol and Core 

Instructors.  The cleaning and maintenance of safety equipment is excluded from all uniform 

allowances.  Excluded items include, but are not limited to, handguns, mace and holder, handcuffs, 

and protective vest and cover.  The MOUs are silent as to other items—i.e., excluded safety 

equipment—including, but not limited to, back up weapons and ankle holster or other hide-away 

rigging, shot guns, assault rifles, tazers, mobile communication devises, and other devices and 

equipment.  Defendant City treats the uniform allowance as a wage and withholds taxes, but 

Defendant City fails to include the uniform allowance in its calculation of each Plaintiff’s premium 

rate.  If the uniform allowance is only a reimbursement, then the withholding of taxes is unlawful, 

and if the uniform allowance is part wage and reimbursement, both the computation of overtime 

rates and withholding of taxes are unlawful.   

24. Common Compensatory Time Off Violations:  Defendant City routinely offers CTO 

in lieu of overtime payments for its police force.  However, due to staffing strains Defendant City 

fails and refuses to grant the promised and earned CTO to the peace officers under the terms and 

conditions required by FLSA and bargained for in the MOUs.  As a result, the peace officers 

continue to work, are not allowed to take CTO and are not paid the overtime wages Plaintiffs 

agreed to forego in lieu of CTO, thereby unjustly enriching Defendant City (in violation of the 

MOUs and FLSA). 

 

25. Defendant City is liable to Plaintiffs for damages by virtue of Defendant City explicitly 

or implicitly directing, adopting, following and/or promoting policies, practices and/or procedures 

that resulted in violations of FLSA and breach of contract.  

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

FLSA §7(a) Violations 

Against Defendant City of San Diego 

26. Plaintiffs allege and incorporate by reference, as though fully set forth, all preceding 

paragraphs of this Complaint.   
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27. Under the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 and the Portal to Portal Act of 1947 [29 

U.S.C. §§201-219, 251-262], and applicable amendments, regulations and case law, including but 

not limited to IBP, Inc. v. Alvarez, 546 U.S. 21, 126 S. Ct. 514 (2005) and Ballaris v Wacker 

Siltronic Corp., 370 F. 3d 901 (9th Cir. 2004), each covered employer, such as Defendant City, is 

required to compensate each nonexempt employee, such as Plaintiffs, for all time spent and 

activities that are an integral and indispensable part of the employee’s principle activities, suffered 

or permitted by the employer, and all hours worked.  Defendant City excluded peace officers from 

any partial exemption to FLSA §7(a).   

28. Defendant City’s Common Overtime Violations constitute voluntary, deliberate or 

intentional violations of FLSA §7(a) [29 U.S.C. §207(a)] by failing and refusing to count all time 

and hours actually worked by peace officers, for which they were not compensated at their regular, 

overtime and/or lawfully calculated premium wage rate. 

29. As a result of each Defendant City’s violations, Plaintiffs seek and are entitled to the 

following: (a) For recovery of unpaid overtime compensation and an additional equal amount as 

liquidated damages, as set forth under 29 U.S.C. §216(b); (b) For an award of costs and reasonable 

attorney fees, as set forth under 29 U.S.C. §216(b); (c) For prejudgment interest; and, (d) For other 

relief deemed just and proper. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against Defendant City, as more fully set forth  

below. 

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

Breach of Contract 

Against Defendant City of San Diego 

30. Plaintiffs allege and incorporate by reference, as though fully set forth, all preceding 

paragraphs of this Complaint.   

31. At all times relevant to this Complaint, there existed a compensation agreement between 

Plaintiffs and Defendant City as reflected by the MOUs, LBFOs separate employment agreements, 

and according to the custom, policy, pattern and practice set by Defendant City. 
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32. Plaintiffs are employees of Defendant City and at all times relevant to this Complaint 

have performed or stood ready to perform all the obligations to Defendant City as required by the 

MOUs, LBFOs, separate employment agreements, and according to the custom, policy, pattern and 

practice set by Defendant City. 

33. Defendant City has failed and refused, and continue to refuse, to tender its performance 

as required by the agreements.  Defendant City’s acts, omissions and Common overtime, Code 7, 

Reimbursement, and CTO Violations constitute breaches of the MOUs, Defendant City’s salary 

ordinances, and implied employment agreements (as reflected by the LBFOs and custom, policy 

and practice of the Defendant City).  

34. Despite knowing of these contracts and existing employment relationship, Defendant 

City knowingly and intentionally interfered with those contracts and employment relationships by 

failing to support and pay the hours worked by Plaintiffs for pre-shift, post-shift and off-site 

activities, compensation due for improper premium rate calculations, damages and penalties for 

missed meal break periods (“Code 7s”), reimbursements due for work-related expenses, and denial 

of earned Compensatory Time Off. 

35. Defendant City’s failure and refusal to perform its obligations under the contract has 

directly damaged Plaintiffs through the loss of compensation at time earned according to proof, 

accruing every pay period for continuing violations.    

 

36. As a direct and proximate result of each Defendant City’s breaches, Plaintiffs have 

suffered injury, loss and damages, for which Plaintiffs seek and are entitled to the following: (a) 

For the recovery of general and special damages, according to proof; (b) For an award of 

prejudgment interest; (c) For an award of attorneys’ fees and costs of suit; and, (d) For other relief 

deemed just and proper. 

37. Defendant City’s actions were undertaken with fraud, malice or oppression, or with a 

conscious disregard of the rights of the Plaintiffs, and therefore, Plaintiff is entitled to an award of 

exemplary and punitive damages against Defendant, in an amount according to proof. 
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendant City, as more fully set forth  

below. 

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

FLSA §7(a) Violations for the Late Payment of Overtime 

Against Defendant City of San Diego 

38. Plaintiffs allege and incorporate by reference, as though fully set forth, all preceding 

paragraphs of this Complaint. 

39. Defendant City has either recklessly or knowingly and intentionally failed and refused 

to compensate Plaintiffs for overtime compensation earned in a particular work period by the 

regular payday for the period in which the work ended.   

40. Defendant City has delayed the payment of overtime for a period longer than is 

reasonably necessary for them to compute and arrange for payments of the amounts due.  

Defendant City knew or should have known that Plaintiffs were working overtime in non-exempt 

jobs without overtime compensation.  Notwithstanding such knowledge, Defendant City failed to 

pay Plaintiffs for overtime hours worked in a timely manner as required under the FLSA. 

41. Although Defendant City has been apprised of the law regarding the payment of hours 

covered by the FLSA, Defendants routinely failed to compensate Plaintiffs for overtime in a timely 

manner. 

42. In doing all the things described and alleged, Defendant City deprived Plaintiffs of their 

rights, privileges and immunities secured to them by federal law which clearly sets forth that 

Plaintiffs are entitled to be paid for overtime hours worked in a workweek by the regular pay day 

for the period in which such workweek ended.  Defendant knew or should have known that its 

reckless, willful and/or intentional failure and refusal to pay in a timely manner for the overtime 

worked by Plaintiffs violates these rights, privileges and immunities. 

43. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ actions and inactions, Plaintiffs have 

been damaged, and are entitled to compensatory and/or liquidated damages in an amount according 

to proof including, but not limited to, a sum equivalent to and in addition to their overtime 
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compensation which was paid late for the three years preceding the date of this action as required 

by 29 U.S.C. §216(b), plus reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendant City, as more fully set forth  

below. 

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

FLSA §7(o) VIOLATIONS 

Against Defendant City of San Diego 

44. Plaintiffs allege and incorporate by reference, as though fully set forth, all preceding 

paragraphs of this Complaint.  

45. Defendant City has either recklessly or knowingly and intentionally failed and refused 

to compensate Plaintiffs for overtime worked. 

46. There is a valid or otherwise lawful agreement between the Plaintiffs’ bargaining unit 

and Defendant City, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §207(o), to pay CTO in lieu of wages, as reflected by 

the MOUs and the Defendant City’s custom, policy, pattern and practice regarding CTO.  

Defendant City does not comply with state or federal requirements for utilization or payment of 

CTO as set forth herein. 

47. Defendant City has failed and refused the peace officers’ requests and ability to take 

CTO as required by the 29 U.S.C. §207(o) and agreements.   

48. Defendant City is in violation of the timely pay requirements of the FLSA and 

agreements.  At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendant City has failed to pay compensatory 

time off, at Plaintiffs sole discretion, at the lawful premium rate.   

49. In doing all the things described and alleged above, Defendant City deprived Plaintiffs 

of their rights, privileges and immunities secured to them by federal law which states that payment 

for overtime hours worked with compensatory time is only lawful if paid pursuant to the terms of a 

valid or otherwise lawful agreement between the Plaintiffs’ representative bargaining unit and the 

City, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §207(o). 

50. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant City’s actions and inactions, Plaintiffs 
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have been damaged, and seek and are entitled to judgment as follows: (a) Election, on an individual 

basis, voiding any purported CTO agreement; (b) For the recovery of unpaid overtime at the lawful 

premium rate; (c) For the recovery of liquidated damages; (d) For an award of attorneys’ fees and 

costs; (e) For an award of prejudgment interest; and, (f) For such further and other relief as deemed 

just and proper. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendant City, as more fully set forth  

below. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

51. Plaintiffs demand a trial by jury as provided by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, 

Rule 38(a). 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment and other relief against Defendants, jointly and 

severally, on each claim for relief, as set forth below. 

52. On the First Claim for Relief for FLSA §7(a) violations:  

a. For recovery of unpaid overtime compensation and an additional equal amount as 

liquidated damages, as set forth under 29 U.S.C. §216(b); 

b. For an award of costs and reasonable attorney fees, as set forth under 29 U.S.C. 

§216(b);  

c. For prejudgment interest; and, 

d. For other relief deemed just and proper. 

53. On the Second Claim for Relief for breach of contract:  

a. For the recovery of general and special damages, according to proof;  

b. For an award of prejudgment interest;  

c. For an award of reasonable attorney fees and costs of suit; and,  

d. For other relief deemed just and proper.  

54. On the Third Claim for FLSA §7(a) violations regarding late payment of overtime:  

a. For actual, consequential, liquidated and incidental damages, according to 
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proof at trial;  

b. For such other damages as may be allowed in accordance with Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure, Rule 54 and 29 U.S.C. §216(b), according to proof at trial;  

c. For liquidated damages, reasonable attorney fees and costs pursuant to 29 

U.S.C. §216(b); and, 

d. For such further and other relief deemed just and proper. 

55. On the Fourth Claim for 29 U.S.C. §207(o) willful violations:  

a. Election, on an individual basis, voiding any purported CTO agreement; 

b. For the recovery of unpaid overtime at the lawful premium rate; 

c. For the recovery of liquidated damages; 

d. For an award of reasonable attorney fees and costs;  

e. For an award of prejudgment interest; and,  

f. For such further and other relief as deemed just and proper. 

 
Respectfully submitted.  

Dated: June 8, 2007     JACKSON | DEMARCO | TIDUS | 
PETERSEN | PECKENPAUGH 

 
     By: /s/ Christopher Nissen 
      Christopher Nissen 
      E-mail: cnissen@jdtplaw.com 

Attorneys for Plaintiffs MARCUS ABBE, et 
al. and BRETT BURKETT, et al. 


